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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Capital Southwest Corporation (the "Company") wagmnized as a Texas corporation on April 19, 1261t September 1969, the Company
operated as a licensee under the Small Businesstiment Act of 1958. At that time, the Company dfarred to its whollyawned subsidiary
Capital Southwest Venture Corporation ("CSVC") taier of its assets and its license as a small basimvestment company ("SBIC").
CSVC is a closed-end, non-diversified investmemjgany of the management type. Prior to March 3881the Company was registered as
a closed-end, non-diversified investment compardeuthe Investment Company Act of 1940 (the "1940"A On that date, the Company
elected to become a business development compajacsto the provisions of Sections 55 through B6the 1940 Act, as amended by the
Small Business Incentive Act of 1980.

The Company is a venture capital investment compamyse objective is to achieve capital appreciatimough long-term investments in
businesses believed to have favorable growth pateithe Company participates in start-up and estdge financings, expansion financings
and leveraged buyout financings in a broad rangedafstry segments. The Company's portfolio ismpasite of investments in several
companies in which the Company has major inteestsell as a number of developing companies an#etable securities of established
publicly-owned companies. The Company makes availsignificant managerial assistance to the congsaimi which it invests and believes
that providing material assistance to such invest@epanies is critical to its business developnaetivities.

The twelve largest investments of the Company heahgbined cost of $40,271,590 and a value of $Z8%®17, representing 90.6% of the
value of the Company's consolidated investmenf@artat March 31, 1996. For a narrative descriptad the twelve largest investments, see
"Twelve Largest Investments - March 31, 1996" oggsab through 7 of the Company's Annual Reportiaré&holders for the Year Ended
March 31, 1996 (the "1996 Annual Report") whiclhésein incorporated by reference. Certain of th@rmation presented on the twelve
largest investments has been obtained from thec&igp companies and, in certain cases, from ptibligs of such companies. The financ
information presented on each of the respectivepamies is from such companies' financial statemerttsh in some instances are
unaudited.

The Company competes for attractive investment dppities with venture capital partnerships andpooations, venture capital affiliates of
industrial and financial companies, other SBICs wedlthy individuals.

The number of persons employed by the Company atiMal, 1996 was eight.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company maintains its offices at 12900 PreBtoad, Suite 700, Dallas, Texas, 75230, where tsrapproximately 3,200 square feet of
office space pursuant to a lease agreement expirifgbruary 1998. The Company believes that fisef are adequate to meet its current
and expected future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has no material pending legal procgedmwhich it is a party or to which any of itoperty is subject.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgéd during the quarter ended March 31, 1!
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The officers of the Company, together with thea&$ in the Company presently held by them, thedifass experience during the last five
years and their ages are as follo

D. Scott Collier, age 33, has served as Vice Peasidf the Company since April 1995 and was andtiment associate with the Company
from 1991 to 1995. He is a graduate of the Univgisli Texas Graduate School of Business, whichttemded from 1989 to 1991 while he
was also employed by Austin Technology Incubator.

J. Bruce Duty, age 45, has served as Senior Viegidant of the Company since 1993, Vice PresidetiteoCompany from 1982 to 1993,
Secretary of the Company from 1980 to 1993 andsines of the Company from 1980 to January 1990.

Patrick F. Hamner, age 40, has served as Vicedemtsof the Company since 1986 and was an investassociate with the Company from
1982 to 1986.

Gary L. Martin, age 49, has been a director of@benpany since July 1988 and has served as VicedBneof the Company since 1984. He
previously served as Vice President of the Comenm 1978 to 1980. Since 1980, Mr. Martin has séras President of The Whitmore
Manufacturing Company, a wholly-owned subsidiaryhef Company.

Tim Smith, age 35, has served as Vice PresidenSacdetary of the Company since 1993, Treasurdreo€ompany since January 1990 and
was an investment associate with the Company frdyn1P89 to January 1990.

William R. Thomas, age 67, has served as Chairrh#medBoard of Directors of the Company since 1888 President of the Company since
1980. In addition, he has been a director of then@my since 1972 and was previously Senior VicsiBeat of the Company from 1969 to
1980.

No family relationship exists between any of thew&-listed officers, and there are no arrangementsiderstandings between any of them
and any other person pursuant to which they wdeetss as an officer. All officers are elected tddhoffice for one year and until their
successors are elected and qualify.

PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information set forth under the captions "Shareboldformation - Shareholders, Market Prices andd2inds" on page 31 of the 1996
Annual Report are herein incorporated by reference.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

"Selected Consolidated Financial Data" on pagef3be1996 Annual Report is herein incorporateddfgrence.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Pages 27 through 29 of the Company's 1996 AnnuyabiRare herein incorporated by reference.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Pages 8 through 26 of the Company's 1996 AnnuabRepe herein incorporated by reference. Seeltdsn 14 of this Form 10-K “Exhibits,
Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Befth

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following presents a summary of the unauditeatigrly consolidated financial information for thears ended March 31, 1996 and 1995.

First Second Third F ourth
Quarter  Quarter Quarter Q uarter Total
(In thousands, except per sha re amounts)
1996

Net investment income $ 816 $ 633 $ 934 $ 472  $ 2,855
Net realized gain (loss) on investments - 12,358 (1,184) 11,174
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized

appreciation of investments before

distributions 2,613 27,272 (2,180) 11,041 38,746
Net increase in net assets from operations

before distributions 3,429 27,905 11,112 10,329 52,775
Net increase in net assets from operations

before distributions per share 91 7.41 2.95 2.74 14.01

1995

Net investment income $ 613 $ 655 $ 637 $ 542 $ 2,447
Net realized gain (loss) on investments 617 (115) (262) (98) 142
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized

appreciation of investments (4,184) 3,682 1,780 12,306 13,584
Net increase (decrease) in net

assets from operations (2,954) 4,222 2,155 12,750 16,173
Net increase (decrease) in net assets

from operations per share (.79) 1.13 .58 3.43 4.35

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable
PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information set forth under the captions "Etatbf Directors” in the Company's definitive ProStatement for Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held July 15, 1996, filed purst@Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchafagteof 1934, on or about June 6, 1996
(the "1996 Proxy Statement") is herein incorpordtgdeference. See also Part | of this Form 10*Executive Officers of the Registrant".
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth under the caption "Congaion of Directors and Executive Officers" in t#96 Proxy Statement is herein
incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information set forth under the captions "St@sknership of Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Eiectof Directors" in the 1996 Proxy
Statement is herein incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

There were no relationships or transactions withenmeaning of this item during the fiscal yearezhtflarch 31, 1996 or proposed for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 1997.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)(2) The following financial statements includegages 14 through 26 of the Company's 1996 AnRegabrt are herein incorporated by
reference:

(A) Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corgard Subsidiary
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition ¥ée&81, 1996 and 1995
Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years EM#dh 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assé&sirs Ended March 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years ENtdedh 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994
(B) Financial Statements of CSVC
Statement of Financial Condition - March 31, 1996
Statement of Operations - Year Ended March 31, 1996
Statements of Changes in Shareholder's Equity rsyaraded March 31, 1996 and 1995
Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended March 31, 1996
(C) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(D) Selected Per Share Data and Ratios

(E) Independent Auditors' Report



(@)(2) All schedules are omitted because they ar@pplicable or not required, or the informatisrotherwise supplied.
(a)(3) See the Exhibit Index on page 7.
(b) The Company filed no reports on Form 8-K duting three months ended March 31, 1996.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report to be

SIGNATURES

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

CAPITAL SOUTHWEST CORPORATION

Date: June 26, 1996

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of

By:/s/ WIlliam R Thonmas

(WIlliam R Thonas,
and Chai rman of the Board)

the Registrant and in the capacities and on theiddtcated.

Si gnature

/sl WIlliam R Thonas
(Wlliam R Thomas)

/sl Gary L. Martin
(Gary L. Martin)

/sl Graeme W Henderson
(Graemre W Henderson)

/'s/ Janes M Nol an
(James M Nol an)

/'s/ John H W I son
(John H. WI son)

/sl TimSnith
(Ti m Sni th)

Title

Presi dent and Chairnan

of the Board and Director

Di rector

Di rector

Di rector

Director

Vi ce President and
Secretary-Treasurer

June

June

June

June

June

Pr esi dent

Dat e

26,

26,

26,

26,

26,

1996

1996

1996

1996

1996

June 26, 1996

(Financi al and Accounting Oficer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits are filed with this repont are incorporated herein by reference to a piiimigf in accordance with Rule 12b-32 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. (Asterisk demexhibits filed with this report.)

Exhibit No.

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1*

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Description

Articles of Incorporation and Articles
Incorporation, dated June 25, 1969 (file
Amendment No. 3 to Form N-2 for the fisca

Articles of Amendment to Articles of Inc
1987 (filed as an exhibit to Form N-SAR f
September 30, 1987).

By-Laws of the Company, as amended (fi
No. 11 to Form N-2 for the fiscal year en

Specimen of Common Stock certificate (fi
No. 3 to Form N-2 for the fiscal year end

Subordinated debentures of CSVC guaran
Administration (filed as Exhibit 5 to Ame
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1987 and
the fiscal year ended March 31, 1993).

The RectorSeal Corporation and Jet-Lu
Ownership Plan as revised and restated ef

Retirement Plan for Employees of Capital
Affiliates as amended and restated effec
Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-K for the fiscal

Capital Southwest Corporation and Its
Retirement Income Plan for certain highly
participants effective April 1, 1993 (f
10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,

Capital Southwest Corporation Retiremen
amended and restated effective April 1, 1
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March

Form of Indemnification Agreement which
directors and executive officers of the C
to Form 8-K dated February 10, 1994).

Capital Southwest Corporation 1984 In
amended and restated as of April 20, 198
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March

of Amendment to Articles of
d as Exhibit 1(a) and 1(b) to
| year ended March 31, 1979).

orporation, dated July 20,
or the six month period ended

led as Exhibit 2 to Amendment
ded March 31, 1987).

led as Exhibit 4 to Amendment
ed March 31, 1979).

teed by the Small Business
ndment No. 11 to Form N-2 for
Exhibit 4.3 to Form 10-K for

be, Inc. Employee Stock
fective April 1, 1989.

Southwest Corporation and Its
tive April 1, 1989 (filed as
year ended March 31, 1995).

Affiliates Restoration of
-compensated superseded plan
iled as Exhibit 10.4 to Form
1995).

t Income Restoration Plan as
989 (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to
31, 1995).

has been established with all
ompany (filed as Exhibit 10.9

centive Stock Option Plan as
7 (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to
31, 1990).



Exhibit No. Description

13. * Annual Report to Shareholders for the figezdr ended March 31, 1996.
21. List of subsidiaries of the Company (filed ashibit 22 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year endedmeta3l, 1992).
23. * Independent Auditors' Consent.

27. * Financial Data Schedule.
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THE RECTORSEAL CORPORATION AND JET-LUBE, INC.
EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN

(As Revised and Restated Effective April 1, 1989)

THIS AGREEMENT, executed this 31 day of Januangél%nd effective the first day of April, 1989 usdespecifically provided elsewhere
in the Agreement, by The RectorSeal Corporatiddekaware corporation, having its principal officeHouston, Texas (hereinafter referre
as the "Company").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, effective June 1, 1976, the Company eistaddl The RectorSeal Corporation Employee Stocké@sinip Plan (hereinafter
referred to as the "Plan"); and

WHEREAS, the Plan was subsequently amended fromn tiintime and was then amended and restated g#e&giril 1, 1985, except for
specific provisions which were effective April 1984, to bring the Plan into compliance with the Eapuity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of
1982, the Tax Reform Act of 1984 and the Retirentaqiity Act of 1984; and

WHEREAS, the Plan was subsequently amended by AmentiNo. 1 effective, with respect to specific psans, on April 1, 1984 and
April 1, 1985; and

WHEREAS, Jet-Lube, Inc., a Delaware corporatioef(tlbe"), and an Affiliated Company (herein defiheestablished the Jet- Lube, Inc.
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the "Jet Lube Plafféctive June 1, 1976; and

WHEREAS, the Jet Lube Plan was subsequently amefndiectime to time prior to April 1, 1984, was anden and restated effective April
1985, except for specific provisions which weresefive April 1, 1984, to bring the Jet Lube Platbinompliance with the Tax Equity and
Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982, the Tax ReforratAf 1984 and the Retirement Equity Act of 1984,adue to the merger of the Jet Lube
Plan with and into the Plan, was amended to comyily (i) those provisions of the Tax Reform ActX886 that were technical corrections to
the Retirement Equity Act of 1984 and (ii) the tergry Treasury Regulations issued with respedidsé provisions in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 enacted by the Retirement Equity Ad984 or the subsequent technical correction jgiowms thereto; and

WHEREAS, Jet Lube approved (i) the merger of the_dbe Plan, effective as of April 1, 1989, withdainto the Plan and (ii) the transfer of
assets from the Jet Lube Plan to the Plan as sopraaticable after the valuation of accounts enét Lube Plan at March 31, 1990; :



WHEREAS, the Company now desires to amend andteetta Plan (i) effective April 1, 1989, except &artain provisions for which anott
effective date is subsequently provided otherwisthé terms of the Plan, to bring the Plan into pliemce with the Tax Reform Act of 1986
as well as all other applicable laws, rules andili@gns enacted or promulgated since the prian ptstatement and (i) effective April 1,
1994, to change the name of the Plan to "The R&etrCorporation and Jet-Lube, Inc. Employee S@ekership Plan."

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises thie mutual covenants herein contained, the [ganteeto agree as follown
ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

Unless by the context hereof a different meaningaarly indicated, whenever used in this Plan felewing words shall have the meanings
hereinafter set forth:

Sec. 1.1 Administrator for the purposes of ERISAangthe Company; provided, that the Company, bgracf its governing body, may
designate another person or entity, including thesfee, as Administrator of the Plan.

Sec. 1.2 Affiliated Company means the Company awydogher entity which is, along with the Companynember of a controlled group of
corporations or a controlled group of trades olifesses [as defined in Section 414(b) or

(c) of the Code], any entity which along with ther@any is included in an affiliated service grogpafined in Section 414(m) of the Code,
and any other entity which is required to be aggted with the Company pursuant to Section 414(theCode.

Sec. 1.3 Allocation Date means the Anniversary Ratkeach additional date designated by the NargeatiBry on which allocations are
made.

Sec. 1.4 Anniversary Date means the last day of éa¥ear.

Sec. 1.5 Annual Compensation means the sum dfgipmounts actually paid to an Employee by the Bygplfor services rendered, as
reported on the Employee's Federal income tax withihg statement (Form W-2 or its subsequent edemiafor the Year, exclusive,
however, of reimbursements and other expense afloeg fringe benefits (cash and noncash), inclubirighot limited to automobile
allowances, taxable group life insurance and ansotlnat are paid to the Employee in cash in liebediig contributed on his behalf to the F
or any other qualified defined contribution planintained by the Employer, moving expenses, welfaeefits, and all other extraordinary
compensation, such as income attributable to phastock plans; (ii) amounts applied to
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purchase benefits pursuant to a salary reducticeeagent under a cafeteria plan as defined in Se&®& of the Code sponsored by an
Employer and amounts deferred pursuant to a segaiyction agreement under any other plan descitb8éction 401(k) of the Code
sponsored by an Employer; and (iii) for Years begig prior to April 1, 1994, amounts accrued in@aY but not paid until the following Ye

as a result of the timing of pay periods or paysdaywhich is deemed to be "de minimus", providechsamounts are paid during the first 1
weeks of the subsequent Year. For (i) any Yeab@ginning after December 31, 1983 and before Jariyak989 in which the Plan is a top
heavy plan as defined in Section 416(g) of the Gud®) beginning after December 31, 1988 and leef@nuary 1, 1994, only the first
$200,000 of Annual Compensation shall be takenawetmunt [or, beginning April 1, 1988, such otheoant as the Secretary of the Treasury
may prescribe at the same time and in the sameenasrprovided under Section 415(d) of the Codadijusting the dollar limitation in

effect under Section 415(b)(1)(A) of the Code] and

(i) beginning after December 31, 1993, only thstft5150,000 of Annual Compensation shall be takiEnaccount [or, beginning April 1,
1995, such other amount as may be determined Bwi#ion 401(a)(17)(B) of the Code] (hereinafteenafd to as the "Compensation
Limitation"). In determining the Annual Compensatiof each Participant, who is (i) a more than freecent owner of an Employer or (ii) a
highly compensated employee [within the meanin§extion 414(q) of the Code] in the group consistifithe ten highly compensated
employees paid the greatest Annual Compensatidngltive Year (without regard to this sentence) piarposes of applying the
Compensation Limitation for a Year after Decemhbkr1®88, the spouse of each such Participant atdadahis lineal descendants who have
not attained age 19 before the close of the Yealt sbt be treated as a separate Employee foivibat and the Annual Compensation of each
such family member shall be aggregated with theush@ompensation of the Participant as if it wesi@o the Participant. If, as a result of
the application of the preceding sentence, the Gmsgtion Limitation for a Year is exceeded, then@ompensation Limitation shall be
prorated among the affected individuals in proportio each such individual's Annual Compensatiodedasrmined under this Section 1.5
prior to the application of this limitation.

Sec. 1.6 Beneficiary means any person or fidudiasignated by a Participant or Former Participanéteive benefits hereunder following
the death of such Participant or Former Participgath Participant and Former Participant may, ftiome to time, select one or more
Beneficiaries to receive benefits pursuant to $adsi.1 in the event of the death of such Partidipafrormer Participant. Such selection shall
be made in writing upon a form provided by the NdrRr@&luciary. The last such selection filed with ti@med Fiduciary shall control. If at

the date of death the Participant or Former Padidiis married, the Beneficiary shall be the sting spouse unless the spouse has consente
in writing to the designation of some other Beriafig, which designation may not be changed witlspatusal consent unless
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the voluntary consent of the spouse (i) expressiynis designations by the Participant without seguirement of further consent by the
spouse and (ii) acknowledges that the spouse kaggit to limit the consent to a specific Benefigi Such written consent must
acknowledge the effect of such selection and soasent must be witnessed by a Plan representata@atary public. Spousal consent is
required if it is established to the satisfactiéithe Plan representative that the consent map@attained (i) because the Participant has no
spouse, (ii) because the spouse cannot be locaféi) because of such other circumstances asSt#wetary of Treasury may by regulations
prescribe. Any consent by a spouse (or establishthahthe consent of the spouse may not be olttastell be effective only with respect to
that spouse. If a selection is not made in compéanith these provisions or if such designatedgesshall have died, Beneficiary means the
first of the following classes of successive prefime beneficiaries then surviving: the Particigamit'Former Participant's:

(a) surviving spouse,

(b) descendants, per stirpes,

(c) parents in equal shares,

(d) brothers and sisters in equal shares, and
(e) estate.

Sec. 1.7 Code means the Internal Revenue Code86f 29 it may be amended from time to time. Refer¢a a section of the Code shall
include that section and any comparable secti@ngffuture legislation that amends, supplementsipersedes said section.

Sec. 1.8 Committee means the committee appointedruirticle X1V to administer the Plan.
Sec. 1.9 Company means The RectorSeal Corporatibelaware corporation, or any successor thereto.

Sec. 1.10 Disability means physical or mental iacéty of a Participant which, in the opinion of laygician approved by the Named
Fiduciary, will permanently prevent such Participiiom performing any of the usual duties of hispboyment.

Sec. 1.11 Early Retirement Date means the Annivei3ate of the Year coinciding with or next follavg the later of the date a Participant
attains age 55 and has completed at least 10 6é&wmrvice (Vesting), provided the Participant beescted at least 60 days prior to such
Anniversary Date to terminate his employment withAffiliated Companies.
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Sec. 1.12 Employee means any individual in the eynpf an Employer who is included on the Federautance Contribution Act rolls of an
Employer, and excludes any Leased Employee.

Sec. 1.13 Employer means the Company and any Affikated Company, with respect to its Employepsyvided such Affiliated Company
is designated by the governing body of the Comangn Employer under the Plan and whose desigragisnch has become effective and
has continued in effect. The designation shall bexeffective only when it shall have been accepiethe governing body of the Employer
and shall be effective for the Year determinedh®ydoverning body of the Company and the EmplodeEmployer may revoke its
acceptance of such designation at anytime, butt sunth acceptance has been revoked, all of thegioog of the Plan and amendments
thereto shall apply to the Employees of the Emplolyethe event the designation of the Employeswash is revoked by the governing bod:
the Employer, this will not be deemed a terminatibthe Plan.

Sec. 1.14 Entry Date means the first day of the Yea

Sec. 1.15 ERISA means the Employee Retirement Iac®eaturity Act of 1974, as it may be amended friome to time, and applicable
regulations promulgated thereunder.

Sec. 1.16 Five-Year Break in Service means anydiresecutive Years during each of which the EmpayeParticipant performs for an
Affiliated Company 500 or fewer Hours of Service.

Sec. 1.17 Former Participant means any individdad vas been a Participant in the Plan (i) who ifonger in the employ of an Affiliated
Company and who has not yet received the entireftiga which he is entitled under the Plan, or\iiho is still in the employ of an Affiliate
Company and who has an interest in the Plan butisvhot eligible for Employer contributions andffstures.

Sec. 1.18 Hours of Service means hours for whietEimployee or Participant is either directly oriiadtly paid, or entitled to payment, by
Affiliated Company. Further, the Employee or Papmt shall be credited with an Hour of Servicedach hour for which back pay,
irrespective of mitigation of damages, has beerrd@&dhor agreed to by an Affiliated Company. Thesetd of Service shall be credited to
Employee for the computation period or periods kool the award or agreement pertains rather thacdmputation period in which the
award, agreement or payment is made. Hours of &efer periods during which no duties are perforrsieall be calculated and credited
pursuant to Section 2530.200b-2(b) and (c) of thpddtment of Labor regulations which are incorpetdterein by reference. No more than
501 Hours of Service shall be credited under tleeguling sentence during any computation periodedployee on a non-hourly payroll
whose Annual Compensation is not determined om#sés of certain amounts for each hour worked $ieadredited with 45 Hours of Serv
for each week during which he would
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otherwise have at least one Hour of Service, agljligto rata on the basis of 10 hours per day whegsiament or the Year begins on other
than a Monday or ends on other than a Friday. dfitiath, solely for the purpose of determining a ©fear Break in Service and a Five-Year
Break in Service, the Plan shall credit the Paréint with the Hours of Service which otherwise vdombrmally have been credited to such
individual during the computation period in whiahm @sence from the service of an Affiliated Compaeogurs for any period by reason of (i)
pregnancy of the individual, (ii) birth of a chitd the individual, (iii) placement of a child withe individual in connection with the adoption
of such child by such individual, or (iv) for purges of caring for such child for a period beginnimgnediately following such birth or
placement; provided, however, if the Participarg tigedit for more than 500 Hours of Service withihiet application of this sentence in the
computation period in which the absence from theise of an Affiliated Company occurs for the reasspecified in this sentence, the Plan
shall credit the Participant with such Hours of\e in the following computation period. The Pkrall not credit any Participant with any
Hours of Service under the preceding sentence sislesh Participant timely furnishes the Administramformation establishing (i) that the
absence from the service of an Affiliated Compamg for one or more reasons specified in the pragezintence and (ii) the number of d
for which there was an absence. Solely for the gaegmf determining a One-Year Break in ServiceahRile-Year Break in Service, the Plan
shall credit each Participant with Hours of Senfimeeach hour in any customary period of work,iggimvhich the Participant is on an unpaid
leave of absence granted as such by an Affiliateehgany in accordance with applicable law and umfgradministered policy. Persons on
an unpaid military leave shall receive Hours ofV8®r credit for the period that their employmewghts are protected by law, to the extent
required by law, provided the Employee returndodctive service of an Affiliated Company withid @ays after discharge from service in
such armed forces, or within such longer periotinoé as may be fixed by law for the protection isf feemployment rights. Should an
Employee fail to return to the active employmenéanfAffiliated Company within the time specifiedanwritten leave of absence, or after ¢
authorized vacation, or after such period of miitservice, as appropriate, his service will bendeg terminated as of the end of such
permitted period of absence. Service with an Afféid Company or a predecessor thereto prior tdateit became an Affiliated Company
may be counted for the purposes of eligibility ardting to the extent approved by the Named Fidwucia

Sec. 1.19 Individual Account means an accountaorceto be maintained by the Committee showingatheunt of the Trust Fund credited to
each Participant, each Former Participant and Badeficiary and shall include the Other Investméxtsount and Parent Company Stock
Account.
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Sec. 1.20 Key Employee means, as of any Deterroim&itate [as defined in
Section 19.4(b)], any Employee or former Employ@eBeneficiary of such Employee) who, at any tinueiny the Year which includes the
Determination Date, or during the preceding fouaisgis:

(a) an officer of any Employer having Annual Comgetion greater than 50% of the amount in effeceusction 415(b)(1)(A) of the Code
for any such Year;

(b) one of the ten Employees having Annual Comptgarsérom any Employer of more than the dollar kation in effect under Section 415
(c)(1)(A) of the Code and owning the largest inséseén such Employer;

(c) a more than five percent owner of any Employger;
(d) a more than one percent owner of any Emplogeiny Annual Compensation from all Employers of entiran $150,000.

For purposes of this Section 1.20, Annual Compémsahall mean annual compensation as defineddtid®e415(c)(3) of the Code, but
including amounts contributed by the Employer parguo a salary reduction agreement which are datlie from the Participant's gross
income under Sections 125, 402(a)(8), 402(h) o(03f the Code. For purposes of

subsection (@) of this Section, no more than
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within the meaning of Section 144(a)(3) of
full-time basis for at least one year and who
historically performed by employees in the
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ion plan providing immediate
a non-integrated contribution



individual's annual compensation [as defined intiBact15(c)(3) of the Code, but including amourdstcibuted by an Employer pursuant 1
salary reduction agreement which are excludabla fiee individual's gross income under Sections 4R2(a)(8), 402(h) or 403(b) of the
Code]. If any Leased Employee shall be treatechdsnaployee of an Employer, however, contributionbenefits provided by the leasing
organization which are attributable to servicethefLeased Employee performed for an Employer &ealteated as provided by the
Employer.

Sec. 1.22 Named Fiduciary means the Company exuéipe extent the Company has delegated specifittiftns to the Committee, if any,
appointed by the Company pursuant to Article Xivhd Committee is appointed, the Trustee will parfahe functions of the Committee.

Sec. 1.23 Non-Key Employee means any Employee weabt a Key Employee.
Sec. 1.24 Normal Retirement Date means a PartitgpanFormer Participant's 65th birthday.

Sec. 1.25 One-Year Break in Service means any fgéng which the Employee or Participant performsgn Affiliated Company 500 or
fewer Hours of Service.

Sec. 1.26 Other Investments Account means theopoofi the Individual Account maintained by the Coittee for each Participant showing
the monetary value of the Participant's individuédrest in the Trust Fund attributable to Emplog@ntributions and forfeitures in cash under
this Plan which have not been invested in Paremgamy Stock and are to be invested in other agsstsll be credited with the net income
(or debited with the loss) of the Trust Fund atttéble to investments in the Other Investments Anto

Sec. 1.27 Parent Company Stock means shares afass/of stock, preferred or common, which areeidsay Capital Southwest Corporati
a Texas corporation, or any other qualifying emplagecurity of Capital Southwest Corporation, dedd in ERISA. The shares of Parent
Company Stock currently held by the Plan are retuteaded on the Nasdaqg National Market.

Sec. 1.28 Parent Company Stock Account means tti@pof the Individual Account of a Participant im@ined by the Committee to which
is credited shares (including fractional sharefpafent Company Stock which are attributable to leygw contributions and forfeitures under
the Plan.

Sec. 1.29 Participant means an Employee who hatheetigibility requirements of the Plan as praddn Article Il hereof and who has
begun participating in the Plan.
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Sec. 1.30 Plan means the plan embodied hereiheasmime may be amended from time to time, andlsé&hown as "The RectorSeal
Corporation and Jet-Lube, Inc. Employee Stock OslmierPlan."

Sec. 1.31 Trust Agreement means the trust agreesnégred into between the Company and the Trusteédune 1, 1976 to carry out the
purposes of the Plan and under which the Trust Fanthintained, provided that if such agreemerdrnended or supplemented, Trust
Agreement, as of a particular date, shall mean agckement, as amended and supplemented and éndiorsuch date.

Sec. 1.32 Trust Fund means all assets of whatsé@aand nature from time to time held by the Teespursuant to the Trust Agreement
without distinction as to income or principal.

Sec. 1.33 Trustee means any institution or indiaisldesignated as Trustee or Trustees by the Bddddectors of the Company and any
successor Trustee or Trustees chosen by such Board.

Sec. 1.34 Year means the 12-consecutive monthcpfom April 1 of each year to the next followingakth 31.

Sec. 1.35 Year of Service (Participation) meansltheconsecutive month period commencing with th@leyment commencement date of
an Employee by an Affiliated Company, which is tlaee the Employee first performs an Hour of Serfocean Affiliated Company, during
which the Employee performs at least 1,000 HouiSes¥/ice for an Affiliated Company. If an Employ@@es not perform 1,000 Hours of
Service in the 12-month period beginning with higpdoyment commencement date, Year of Service @aation) means the Year
commencing with the Year immediately following kisiployment commencement date during which the Eyegl@erforms at least 1,000
Hours of Service for an Affiliated Company.

Sec. 1.36 Year of Service (Vesting) means any ¥daeang which the Employee performs at least 1,000nd of Service for an Affiliated
Company, subject to the following:

(a) if an Employee has a One-Year Break in Ser¥iears of Service (Vesting) before such break gi@lbe taken into account until he has
completed a Year of Service (Vesting) after hismeto employment; and

(b) if an Employee has a Five-Year Break in Servitears of Service (Vesting) after such break shatlbe taken into account for the
purposes of determining the nonforfeitable perapniat his accrued benefit derived from Employertdbations which accrued before such
break.

Sec. 1.37 Gender and Number. Except as otherwdseated by the context, any masculine terminologgrduherein also includes the femin
and neuter, and vice versa, and the definitiomgftarm herein in a singular shall also includepgheal, and vice versa.
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ARTICLE II
ELIGIBILITY OF EMPLOYEES

Sec. 2.1 Eligibility. Each eligible Employee sHad#l deemed to have become a Participant (unlesgéts etherwise pursuant to Section 2.2)
as of the Entry Date which falls within the Empleiescompletion of one Year of Service (Participatio

Sec. 2.2 Election Not to Participate. An Employkgilde to participate or participating in the Plaray elect not to participate (or elect to
withdraw from the Plan if then participating) fogaven Year, provided that written notice of suécéon is given to the Committee in
satisfactory form before the end of the Year inggiom. Upon receipt by the Committee of such netice Participant shall become a Former
Participant retroactively to the beginning of ttetjzular Year. Such election shall remain in efigless and until the Employee ceases to be
such or elects to participate again. An Employéglaé to participate in the Plan who has electetita participate (or elected to withdraw)
may elect to participate in any Year thereafteglwng written notice in satisfactory form to th@@mittee. Such election shall be effective
immediately, and the Employee shall become anaarticipant as of the date of receipt of suchtiele by the Committee or such later date
as may be specified in the notice.

Sec. 2.3 Eligibility upon Reemployment. Notwithsiarg Section 2.1, each Employee who completes a dfe@ervice (Participation) in
either his first 12 months of employment or a Yearrequired in Section 1.35, but is not employtati@expiration of such 12-month period
or such Year, shall become a Participant immediatpbn his return to the status of Employee, sub@&ection 2.6. An Employee who
completes 1,000 Hours of Service in the 12-montfodeor the Year while employed by an Affiliated i@pany which is not an Employer
shall become a Participant as of the Entry Dateqalig the date on which he becomes an Employaa Bmployer.

Sec. 2.4 Reemployment of Participant. If the emplegt of a Participant is terminated for any reaaoe he subsequently is reemployed b
Employer, he shall be eligible to become a Pauitifunless he elects otherwise pursuant to Se2t)ron the date he resumes employment
with an Employer.

Sec. 2.5 Exclusion of Employees Covered by CollecBargaining.
Notwithstanding Section 2.1, an Employee covered byllective bargaining agreement between the Byapland a collective bargaini
representative certified under the Labor ManagerRefdtions Act who is otherwise eligible to become
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Participant under this Article shall be excludecdetirement benefits were the subject of good fa#tgaining between the Employee's
representative and the Employer and if the agreedeas not require the Employer to include such Byge in this Plan. An Employee who
is a Participant in this Plan when he is excludedeu the provisions of this

Section 2.5 shall cease active participation ia Bian on the effective date of that collectivegharing agreement and shall not participate in
Employer contributions while a member of the inilig class but shall not be considered to haveited®d employment.

Sec. 2.6 Eligibility Upon Entry or Reentry into @lle Class of Employees. In the event a Partidimaxcluded because he is no longer a
member of an eligible class of Employees as spgetifi this Article 11, such Employee shall partigip as of the Entry Date preceding the

of his return to an eligible class of Employeesthia event that an Employee who is not a Formeidifzant in the Plan becomes a member of
the eligible class, such Employee shall particigest®f the Entry Date preceding the date of hisiméeg an eligible class member if such
Employee has satisfied the eligibility requiremesftSection 2.1 and would have previously becorRaudicipant had he been in the eligible
class.

ARTICLE Il
CONTRIBUTIONS, FUNDING POLICY AND WITHDRAWALS

Sec. 3.1 Contributions of the Employer. The govagrbody of each Employer, in its discretion, skaliermine the amount of, and cause t
made, its contribution to the Plan. Each Employletslity for the amount of its contribution wille established by its governing body, and
other actions taken, within the time required by 0 as to permit the contributions for a particaar to be deductible for Federal income
tax purposes for the corresponding taxable year tfae amount of such contribution will be commuteckto Participants as soon as
practicable after the amount thereof has been lesdial.

Sec. 3.2 Form of Employer Contributions. The Emplogontribution by eacBmployer may be paid in cash or in securities, iopineperty, ol
shares having an equivalent value, or any comlundtiereof, as the governing body of the Employay aetermine. To the extent that the
Trust Fund has cash obligations payable in onefyear the date the Employer contribution is duehsEmployer contribution shall be paid
in cash in an amount determined by the Employ¢h@iCommittee.

Sec. 3.3 Time of Contributions. Contributions magiean Employer pursuant to
Section 3.1 may be made at any time and from toriarte, except that the total contribution for afgar shall be paid in full not later than
time prescribed by law to enable the Employer tiaioba deduction therefor on its federal income
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tax return for said Year. Contributions made dtfter Anniversary Date of the Year but within thedifor filing an Employer's federal income
tax return (including extensions thereof) shaltleemed made as of the Anniversary Date of that ¥esardirected by the Employer, except
such contributions shall not share in increasesedses, or income to the Trust Fund prior to #te dctually made. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, upon an Employer's request, a contidouivhich was made upon a mistake of fact or camuktil upon initial qualification of the
Plan (application for which is made by the timesgréed by law for filing the Employer's tax retdan the taxable year in which the Plan is
adopted, or such later date as the Secretary dfrfesury may prescribe) or upon deductibilityha tontribution shall be returned to the
Employer within one year after payment of the cibation, denial of the qualification, or disallowanof the deduction (to the extent
disallowed), as the case may be; provided, howéweramount returned to an Employer due to mistdact or denial of deductibility shall
not be increased by any earnings thereon andisdaéiduced by any losses attributable to such amoun

Sec. 3.4 Limit on Employer Contributions. Notwittustling the foregoing provisions of this Article, lthe contribution of an Employer for ¢
Year shall in no event exceed an amount which wiltjer the law then in effect, be deductible byEngployer in computing its federal taxes
for the fiscal year of the Employer in which thagaf ends.

Sec. 3.5 Withdrawal of Contributions. Except asvited in this Section, no amounts may be withdrémwm Participant from his Individual
Account until the Participant's employment withEthployers has terminated. In the event of findrwadship, a Participant or Former
Participant may, with the consent of the Committeighdraw such portion of his Individual Accountthe Committee may approve;
provided, however, that no amount in excess of/#sted portion of his Individual Account may behwlitawn from such Individual Account.
A request for withdrawal under this Section 3.5lldb@ made in writing to the Committee, and shatlferth the particular circumstances
constituting the financial hardship and the amoaguested to be withdrawn. The term "financial Bhai' shall mean acute financial
necessity resulting from iliness or death of mermslméithe family, education of children and casubdses not covered by insurance. The
determination by the Committee as to the existafd¢mancial hardship and the amount permittede¢aithdrawn shall be conclusive but
shall be made on a consistent and nondiscrimindiasys. All amounts not actually withdrawn shathegn credited to the Individual Account
of the Participant or Former Participant. For theppses of allocating appreciation, depreciatinogine, expense, gain and loss of the Trust
Fund, any withdrawals shall be subtracted fromitickvidual Account balance as of the beginninghaf Year in which the withdrawal is
made.
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ARTICLE IV
ACCOUNTS AND VALUATION OF TRUST FUND

Sec. 4.1 Participants' Individual Accounts. Theetssef the Trust Fund shall constitute a singlelfimwhich each Participant and Former
Participant shall have his proportionate interegpr@vided in this Plan. The Committee shall mamter cause to be maintained, with respect
to each Employer, an Individual Account for eachtiBipant or Former Participant which shall refléee credits and charges allocable thereto
in accordance with the Plan. The Committee shalhtam, or cause to be maintained, records whidhagiequately disclose at all times the
state of the Trust Fund and of each separate sitdrerein. The books, forms and methods of acaogishall be entirely in the hands of and
subject to the supervision of the Committee.

Sec. 4.2 Valuation of the Trust Fund and of theredt of Each Participant.

Within a reasonable time after each Allocation D#te Committee shall have the Trustee preparatarsent of the condition of the Trust
Fund, setting forth all investments, receipts aisthursements, and other transactions effected dyribg the applicable period, and showing
all the assets of the Trust Fund and the costaindifarket value thereof. This statement shalldlevered to the Committee. At least annuz
the Committee shall cause to be prepared, and délaler to each Participant or Former Participargport disclosing the status of his
Individual Account in the Trust Fund as of the aggdble Allocation Date.

For purposes of determining the market value ofisées held by the Trustee, such securities dfalfalued as of the close of business on the
Allocation Date or, if securities shall not haveehdraded and reported on a national securitielsagrge or in the over-the-counter market on
such date, then at the last bid price as of thgeatd business on the Allocation Date.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sectib8, if the Trustee shall determine that the TRustid assets consist in whole or in par
property not traded freely on a recognized maiketuding but not limited to Parent Company Stamkthat information necessary to
ascertain the fair market value thereof is notitgayailable to the Trustee, the Trustee shaluesg the Committee to instruct the Trustee as
to the value of such property for all purposes urtkle Plan, and the Committee shall comply withhstegjuest. The Committee may engage a
competent appraiser to assist it in this proceks.value placed upon such property by the Commiittés instructions to the Trustee shall be
conclusive and binding upon the Trustee subjetiiédiduciary provisions of ERISA. If the Committekall fail or refuse to instruct the
Trustee as to the value of such property withinasonable time after receipt of the Trustee's #doelo so, the Trustee may engage a
competent appraiser to fix the fair market
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value of such property for all purposes hereuntlee determination of any duly retained appraisapdhke fair market value of such property
shall be the value reported hereunder, and neitliee€ommittee nor the Trustee shall have any ltghil connection therewith, subject to the
fiduciary provisions of ERISA. The reasonable faad expenses incurred for any such appraisal Bhaleemed an expense of the Trustee
and paid as provided in

Section 15.8.

The determination of the fair market value of teeeds of the Trust Fund and the Committee's chamge®dits to the Individual Accounts
with respect to Participants or Former Participahtal be final and conclusive on all persons évierested hereunder, subject to Section
hereof.

Sec. 4.3 Allocations to Individual Accounts. In erdhat each Participant's interest as providetigPlan may be determined, the Individual
Account of each Participant [or Former Participémt,purposes of Sec. 4.3(c)(iii)] shall be adjdstes follows:

(a) The Parent Company Stock Account of each Raatit will be credited at least once each Year Withallocable share of (i) Parent
Company Stock purchased and paid for by the TrustiFrom contributions or out of his Other InvestitseAccount or contributed in kind |
his Employer, (ii) forfeitures of Parent Compangp& which are attributable to his Employer ang étock dividends of Parent Company
Stock on Parent Company Stock held in his Parentg@my Stock Account or acquired in exchange foeo#ssets not yet allocated.

(b) The Other Investments Account of each Partiipéll be credited with his remaining allocableash of contributions and forfeitures not
represented by Parent Company Stock which arduatiaddle to his Employer and with cash dividend®arent Company Stock in his Parent
Company Stock Account; it will also be credited debited) with his share of the net income (or)a$the Trust Fund attributable to it. Each
Participant's Other Investments Account may alsddi#ted for any purchases of Parent Company Stodkhe Parent Company Stock
Account shall then be credited.

(c) The allocations will be made as follows:

(i) Employer Contributions and Other Items. Emplogentributions and Parent Company Stock attribettiereto will be allocated as of
each Anniversary Date among the Individual AccowftBarticipants who are Employees of each Emplay#¢hne end of the Year and, for ¢
Year in which the Plan is not a top heavy planefindd in Section 416(g) of the Code, who completeléast 1,000 Hours of Service during
the Year, and to the Individual Accounts of ForrRarticipants whose employment was terminated bsoreaf death, Disability
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or retirement under Article VII during the Year,time ratio in which the Annual Compensation of elaears to the aggregate Annual
Compensation of all.

(i) Forfeitures. Forfeitures during a Year attriédble to the former Participants of each Emplogehject to Section 10.5, shall be allocated as
of the Anniversary Date in such Year among thewiadial Accounts of the remaining Participants aondnfer Participants employed by the
same Employer in the same proportion that the Eyaploontributions are (or would be) allocated focls Year.

(iii)Net Income (or Loss) of the Trust Fund. The mezome (or loss) of the Trust Fund will be detared as of each Anniversary Date, or
more frequently if the Trustee or the Committeelasires. Except as provided herein with respectitain dividends and tax refunds, the net
income (or loss) of the Trust Fund which is atttifale to assets held in a Participant's and FoRagicipant's Other Investments Account
shall be allocated to his Other Investments Accauttte ratio which the balance of his Other Inmgstts Account on the preceding
Anniversary Date bears to the sum of such balaased the preceding Anniversary Date for all Pgséints and Former Participants in the
Plan on the subsequent Anniversary Date. Dividéedsluding dividends of Parent Company Stock) oreRaCompany Stock and tax
refunds with respect to Parent Company Stock &leadillocated to the Other Investments Account ohd?articipant or Former Participant in
the ratio that the number of shares of Parent Comnf#ock held in that Participant's or Former Rartint's Parent Company Stock Account
bears to the total number of shares of Parent Coyntock held in the Parent Company Stock Accoahtdl Participants and Former
Participants. Likewise, dividends declared on atimeosecurity held by the Trust Fund shall be alted to the Other Investments Account of
each Participant or Former Participant in the rttad the number of shares of that security to tviiie dividend relates held in that
Participant's or Former Participant's Other Investta Account bears to the total number of sharéisadfsecurity held in the Other
Investments Accounts of all Participants and ForReaticipants. The net income (or loss) includesiticrease (or decrease) in the fair me
value of assets of the Trust Fund (other than R&empany Stock), interest, dividends, tax refurdiser income and expenses since the
preceding Anniversary Date.

(d) Equitable Allocation. The Committee may eststblaccounting procedures for the purpose of makieallocations, valuations and
adjustments to Individual Accounts of Participaamtsl Former Participants provided for in this AgitV. Should the Committee determine
that the strict
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application of its accounting procedures will negult in an equitable and nondiscriminatory allmratimong the Other Investments Accol
and Parent Company Stock Accounts of ParticipamdsFrmer Participants, it may modify its proceduie the purpose of achieving an
equitable and nondiscriminatory allocation in ademce with the general concepts of the Plan angrthésions of this Article 1V; provided,
however, that such adjustments to achieve equdl sbt reduce the vested portion of a Particigarformer Participant and shall be
consistent with the provisions of the Code.

(e) Computations. All of the computations requitedhe made under the provisions of this Articleshall be made in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and soaofipaitations, when made, shall be conclusive wispeet thereto and shall be binding
upon all the Participants and Former Participantsall other persons ever having an interest inTtiust Fund, subject to the provisions of
Section 8.1.

(f) Dividends After Anniversary Date. If a Partieipt or Former Participant is to receive a distituor withdrawal from the Plan based on
the immediately preceding Anniversary Date andrgndhe date of such distribution or withdrawaligidend is declared on any security t
by that Participant's or Former Participant's Irdlial Account, the amount of the distribution telsiParticipant or Former Participant shall
be adjusted to reflect such dividend.

Sec. 4.4 Included Individual Accounts. For the msgs of this Article 1V, references to the Indivédidhccounts of Participants shall include
the Individual Accounts of those who die, becorrsadied, retire, or terminate their services dutirggYear in question.

Sec. 4.5 Time When Contributions are Allocatedlitécted by the Committee, an Employer contribufmma Year may be provisionally
allocated as of any Allocation Date prior to theniversary Date, but such allocation shall be sulifeadjustment as of the Anniversary Di

ARTICLE V
LIMITATION ON ALLOCATIONS

Sec. 5.1 Limitation on Allocations. Notwithstandiagy other provision of the Plan, the following yigions shall be applicable to the Plan
effective April 1, 1987:

(a) If this Plan is the only plan maintained byEmployer which covers the class of Employees dhgib participate hereunder and the
Participant does not participate in and has
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never participated in a Related Plan or a welfamefit fund, as defined in Section 419(e) of thel€anaintained by the Employer, or an
individual medical account, as defined in Secti@6(4)(2) of the Code, maintained by the Employdriclv provides an Annual Addition as
defined in Section 5.1(0)(i), the Annual Additiomkich may be allocated under this Plan to a Paaiti's Individual Account for a Limitatic
Year shall not exceed the lesser of (i) the MaxinRenmissible Amount or (ii) any other limitationntained in this Plan.

(b) Prior to the determination of the Participaattual Annual Compensation for a Limitation Yahge Maximum Permissible Amount may
be determined on the basis of the Participantsiastd Annual Compensation for such Limitation Ye&uch estimated Annual
Compensation shall be determined on a reasonabig &ad shall be uniformly determined for all Raptants similarly situated. Any
Employer contributions (including allocation of feitures) based on estimated Annual Compensatialhisé reduced by any Excess Amot
carried over from prior Years.

(c) As soon as is administratively feasible after €nd of the Limitation Year, the Maximum PernbfsiAmount for such Limitation Year
shall be determined on the basis of the Participaictual Annual Compensation for such Limitaticeal.

(d) If there is an Excess Amount with respect Ragticipant for the Limitation Year, such Excessdmt shall be disposed of as follows:

(i) the Excess Amount attributable to the portiénhe Employer contribution made pursuant to Sec8d which has been allocated to a
Participant under the Plan for a Year but whichncaiibe allocated to his Individual Account becaofthe limitation imposed by this Sectic
shall, subject to the limitations of Section 5.1z allocated and reallocated in the current latroh Year to Individual Accounts of the other
Participants entitled to share in the Employer gbuations and forfeitures for that Year in accorcamvith Section 4.3. Any Excess Amount
that cannot be allocated will be held unallocated suspense account. All amounts in the suspegsei@ must be allocated and reallocated
to the Participants' Individual Accounts, subjecttte limitations of Section 5.1(a), in succeedingitation Years before any Employer
contributions which constitute Annual Additions mas made to the Plan; and

(i) in the event of termination of the Plan, thespense account shall revert to the Employer te@xtent it may not then be allocated to any
Participant's Individual Account.
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(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this @t 5.1, an Employer shall not contribute any amdhat would cause an allocation to the
suspense account as of the date the contributialioisated. If the contribution is made prior te thate as of which it is to be allocated, then
such contribution shall not exceed an amount tlmatledvcause an allocation to the suspense accothre date of the contribution were an
Allocation Date.

(f) If an Employer maintains, in addition to thilR, (i) a Related Plan which covers the same daksnployees eligible to participate
hereunder, (ii) a welfare benefit fund, as defire@ection 419(e) of the Code, or (iii) an indivedumedical account, as defined in
Section 415(1)(2) of the Code, which provides améa Addition as defined in Section 5.1(0)(i), thenual Additions which may be
allocated under this Plan to a Participant's Irtlimi Account for a Limitation Year shall not excebd lesser of:

(A) the Maximum Permissible Amount, reduced byshen of any Annual Additions allocated to the Pgrtat's accounts for the same
Limitation Year under this Plan and such other Rel&lan and the welfare plans described in clafi3esd (iii) above; or

(B) any other limitation contained in this Plan.

(g) Prior to the determination of the Participaattual Annual Compensation for the Limitation Y,@éhe amount referred to in

Section 5.1(f) above may be determined on the ldiglse Participant's estimated Annual Compensdtiosuch Limitation Year. Such
estimated Annual Compensation shall be determineal r@asonable basis and shall be uniformly detexdnfor all Participants similarly
situated. Any Employer contributions (includingagiation of forfeitures) based on estimated Annuah@ensation shall be reduced by an
Excess Amount carried over from prior Years.

(h) As soon as is administratively feasible after €nd of the Limitation Year, the amount refeti@th Section 5.1(f) above, shall be
determined on the basis of the Participant's a&nalial Compensation for such Limitation Year.

(i) If the Annual Additions with respect to the Beipant under other Related Plans and welfaregptiescribed in Section 5.1(f)(ii) and

(iii) are less than the Maximum Permissible Amoand the Employer contribution that otherwise wdwgdcontributed or allocated to the
Participant's Individual Account under this Planulebcause the Annual Additions for the Limitatioeaf to exceed the limitation of
Section 5.1(f), the amount contributed or allocatader the Related Plans will first be reduced thieth the amount contributed or allocated
under this Plan will be reduced so that the Andaitions under all such plans for the
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Limitation Year will equal the Maximum PermissitAenount. If the Annual Additions with respect to tRarticipant under the Related Plans
and welfare plans described in Section 5.1(f)il &ii) in the aggregate are equal to or gredtantthe Maximum Permissible Amount, no
amount will be contributed or allocated to the Rgrant's Individual Account under this Plan foe thimitation Year unless the Annual
Additions with respect to the Participant underReated Plans are sufficiently reduced. If a Bgréint's Annual Additions under this Plan
and all Related Plans result in an Excess Amouet) £xcess Amount shall be deemed to consist dcdith@unts last allocated to the Related
Plans and Annual Additions attributable to a welfplan described in Section 5.1(f)(ii) or (iii) Wile deemed to have been allocated first
regardless of the actual allocation date.

() If an Excess Amount was allocated to a Paréinipon an allocation date of a Related Plan, theef&xAmount attributed to this Plan will be
the product of:

(i) the total Excess Amount allocated as of sudie flacluding any amount which would have beenadted but for the limitations of
Section 5.1(a)],

multiplied by:

(ii) the ratio of:

(A) the amount allocated to the Participant asuchsdate under this Plan,

divided by:

(B) the total amount allocated as of such date utide Plan and all Related Plans [determined withegard to Section 5.1(a)].
(k) Any Excess Amounts attributed to this Plan Ebaldisposed of as provided in Section 5.1(d).

() If an Employer maintains, or has ever maintdinene or more defined benefit plans covering aplEyee who is also a Participant in this
Plan, the sum of the Defined Contribution Plan fosicand the Defined Benefit Plan Fraction, carexateed 1.0 for any Limitation Year. T
Annual Addition for any Limitation Year beginningtore January 1, 1987 shall not be recomputedetd &ll Employee contributions as an
Annual Addition. If the Plan satisfied the applitmbequirements of Section 415 of the Code asfacefor all Limitation Years beginning
before January 1, 1987, an amount shall be subttdacdm the numerator of the Defined ContributidanF-raction (not exceeding such
numerator) as prescribed by the Secretary of Trgasuthat the sum of the Defined Benefit Plan fioacand the Defined Contribution Plan
Fraction computed
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under Section 415(e)(1) of the Code [as revisethizySection 5.1(1)] does not exceed 1.0 for suichitation Year.

(m) For the purpose of Section 5.1(l), Employeetigbutions to a defined benefit plan are treated asparate defined contribution plan. In
addition, any contributions paid or accrued aftec€mber 31, 1985 which are attributable to medieakfits allocated under a welfare ber
fund [as defined in Section 419(e) of the Code]rdpivears ending after December 31, 1985 to a sépaccount established for any post-
retirement medical benefits provided with respec Participant, who, at any time, during the Yaraany preceding Year, is or was a Key
Employee, shall be treated as Annual Additions defned contribution plan. Further, all definechttbution plans of an Employer are to be
treated as one defined contribution plan and dihdd benefit plans of an Employer are to be tréai® one defined benefit plan, whether or
not such plans have been terminated.

(n) If the sum of the Defined Contribution Plan ¢tran and the Defined Benefit Plan Fraction excee@sthe sum of the fractions will be
reduced to 1.0 as follows:

() voluntary nondeductible Employee contributionade by a Participant to the defined benefit plaictv constitute an Annual Addition to a
defined contribution plan, to the extent they wodduce the sum of the fractions to 1.0, will biimeed to the Participant;

(ii) if additional reductions are required for them of the fractions to equal 1.0, voluntary nonab¢ittle Employee contributions made by a
Participant to this Plan which constitute an Annaddlition to this Plan, to the extent they woulduee the sum of the fractions to 1.0, will
returned to the Participant;

(iii)if additional reductions are required for tkem of the fractions to equal 1.0, the Annual Bérdfa Participant under the defined benefit
plan will be reduced (but not below zero and ndbwehe amount of the Participant's accrued benefitate) to the extent necessary to
prevent the sum of the fractions, computed as@ttbse of the Limitation Year from exceeding hafg

(iv) if additional reductions are required for thiem of the fractions to equal 1.0, the reductioiistiien be made to the Annual Additions of
this Plan.

(o) Definitions:
(i) Annual Additions means the sum of the followisgnounts allocated to a Participant's Individuat@unt for a Limitation Year:
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(A) all Employer contributions;

(B) all forfeitures;

(C) all Employee contributions; and

(D) amounts described in Sections 415(1)(1) and 419A(d)(2) of
the Code.

For purposes of this Section 5.1(0)(i), Employeetdbutions shall be determined without regardrg @) rollover contribution within the
meaning of Section 402(a)(5), 403(a)(4) or 408(ddfxhe Code [or, on or after January 1, 1993glagible rollover contribution as described
in Section 402(c)(4) of the Code], (ii) contributiby the Employee to a simplified employee pensim (iii) contribution to an individual
retirement account or individual retirement annuity

(i) Excess Amount means the excess of the Annuiitfons allocated to a Participant's Individualc@ant for the Limitation Year over the
Maximum Permissible Amount, less loading and otttministrative charges allocable to such excess.

(iii)Limitation Year means a twelveensecutive month period ending on the Anniver&ate. All qualified plans maintained by the Emplc
must use the same Limitation Year. If the Limitatidéear is amended to a different 12-consecutivetmpariod, the new Limitation Year
must begin on a date within the Limitation Yeamihich the amendment is made.

(iv) Maximum Permissible Amount for a Limitation ¥ewith respect to any Participant shall be thedesf:

(A) $30,000 [or, if greater, one-fourth of the @wllimitation in effect under Section 415(b)(1)(@/)the Code as it may be adjusted under
Section 415(d)(1) of the Code by the Secretaryheflireasury for the Limitation Year]; or

(B) 25% of the Participant's Annual Compensatiartlie Limitation Year.

(v) Employer means for purposes of this Section &y Employer and any Affiliated Company that addhis Plan; provided, however, the
determination under Section 414(b) and (c) of tbdeCshall be made as if the phrase "more than E@p#& were substituted for the phrase
"at least 80 percent" each place it is incorporatém Section 414(b) and (c) of the Code.
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(vi) Annual Compensation means, notwithstandingiSed..5, for the purposes of this Section 5.1a#iBipant's earned income, wages,
salaries, fees for professional service and othmumts received (without regard to whether an amsupaid in cash) for personal services
actually rendered in the course of employment aittEmployer maintaining the Plan to the extent thatamounts are includable in gross
income (including, but not limited to, commissiqrad salesmen, compensation for services on thie bha percentage of profits,
commissions on insurance premiums, tips, bonusaggfbenefits, reimbursements, and expense alloegrand excluding the following:

(A) Employer contributions to a plan of deferreadngensation to the extent contributions are nouitket! in gross income of the Employee
the taxable year in which contributed, or on beb&tin Employee to a simplified employee pensi@nb the extent such contributions are
deductible under

Section 219(b)(2) of the Code, and any distribugifrom a plan of deferred compensation whethemobintludable in the gross income of the
Employee when distributed;

(B) amounts realized from the exercise of a nonlifie@ stock option, or when restricted stock (ooferty) held by an Employee becomes
freely transferable or is no longer subject to lassantial risk of forfeiture;

(C) amounts realized from the sale, exchange @ratisposition of stock acquired under a quali&atk option; and

(D) other amounts which receive special tax beggfit contributions made by an Employer (whetherairunder a salary reduction
agreement) towards the purchase of a 403(b) anaaitiract under Section 403(b) of the Code (whebherot the contributions are
excludable from the gross income of the Employea)tributions made by an Employer for medical bi#sgfvithin the meaning of Section
401(h) or 419A(f)(2) of the Code] which is otherwiseated as an Annual Addition, or any amountretlse treated as an Annual Addition
under Section 415(1)(1) or 419A(d)(2) of the Code.

For Limitation Years after December 31, 1991, Adr@ampensation for any Limitation Year is the AnhGampensation actually paid or
includable in gross income during such LimitatioeaY.
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(vi)Related Plan means any other defined contidlouplan [as defined in Section 415(k) of the Coal@jntained by any Employer as defined
in Section 5.1(0)(v).

(viii) Defined Contribution Plan Fraction means oty Limitation Year:

(A) the sum of the Annual Additions to the Partanp's account under this Plan and any Relateddridrwelfare plans [as described in
Section 5.1(f)(ii) and (iii)] as of the close ofthimitation Year,

divided by:
(B) the sum of the lesser of the following amouwtggermined for the Limitation Year and for eaclopiYear of his service for an Employer:

(1) the product of 1.25, multiplied by the dollanitation in effect under Section 415(c)(1)(A) bdktCode for the Limitation Year [determin
without regard to Section 415(c)(6) of the Code], o

(2) the product of 1.4, multiplied by an amount &do 25% of the Participant's Annual Compensafiiorthe Limitation Year.

If the Employee was a Participant as of the entheffirst day of the first Limitation Year begingjmfter December 31, 1986, in one or more
defined contribution plans maintained by an Emptaykich were in existence on May 6, 1986, the natwerof the Defined Contribution
Plan Fraction will be adjusted if the sum of thaiction and the Defined Benefit Plan Fraction athse would exceed 1.0 under the terms of
this Plan. Under the adjustment, an amount equéile@roduct of (i) the excess of the sum of tlaetfons over 1.0, times (ii) the denominator
of this fraction, will be permanently subtractedrfr the numerator of this fraction. The adjustmertalculated using the fractions as they
would be computed under this Section 5.1(0) ab®fnd of the last Limitation Year beginning beféaauary 1, 1987, and disregarding any
changes in the terms and conditions of the Plareraftér May 6, 1986, but using the

Section 415 limitations applicable to the first liiation Year beginning on or after January 1, 198% Annual Addition for any Limitation
Year beginning before January 1, 1987, shall naebemputed to treat all Employee contributiongasual Additions. The adjustment also
will be made if at the end of the last Limitatiomaf beginning before January 1, 1984, the sumeofréittions exceeds 1.0 because of acc
or

-23-



additions that were made before the limitationthef Article V became effective to any plans ofanployer in existence on July 1, 1982.
With respect to any Limitation Year ending aftercBmber 31, 1982, the amount taken into accountrupeletion 5.1(0)(viii)(B) above with
respect to each Participant for all Limitation Yeanding before January 1, 1983, shall be an anemual to the product of (C) and (D),
where

(C) is the amount determined under Section 5.1{{Q)®) [as in effect for the Limitation Year endinn 1982] for the Limitation Year ending
in 1982, multiplied by

(D) a fraction, the numerator of which is the lesse

(1) $51,875, or

(2) 1.4, multiplied by 25% of the Annual Compengatof the Participant for the Limitation Year englim 1981, and
the denominator of which is the lesser of

(1) $41,500 or

(2) 25% of the Annual Compensation of the Particigar the Limitation Year ending in 1981.

(ix) Defined Benefit Plan Fraction means for anynitation Year:

(A) the projected Annual Benefit of the Participanter the defined benefit plans maintained by mplyer determined as of the close of
Limitation Year,

divided by:

(B) the lesser of:

(1) the product of 1.25, multiplied by the dollanitation in effect under Section 415(b)(1)(A) bktCode for the Limitation Year, or
(2) the product of 1.4, multiplied by 100% of therfitipant's Average Compensation.

If the Employee was a Participant as of the fiest df the first Limitation Year beginning after Bmuber 31, 1986, in one or more defined
benefit plans maintained by
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an Employer which were in existence on May 6, 1986 denominator of this fraction will not be lekan 125% of the sum of the annual
benefits under such plans which the Participantdtadued as of the close of the last Limitation M@sginning before January 1, 1987,
disregarding any changes in the terms and condittéthe Plan after May 5, 1986. The precedingesar# applies only if the defined benefit
plans individually and in the aggregate satisfieeltequirements of Section 415 of the Code fokiatitation Years beginning before January
1,1987.

(x) Average Compensation means the average Anmuaip€nsation during a Participant's high three yehsgrvice, which period is the th
consecutive calendar years (or, the actual numbesrsecutive years of employment for those Empsygho are employed for less than
three consecutive years with an Employer) duringcivihe Employee had the greatest aggregate Af@wralpensation from the Employer,
including any adjustments under

Section 415(d) of the Code.

(xi) Annual Benefit means a benefit payable anyualtthe form of a straight life annuity (with nacllary benefits) under a plan to which
Employees do not contribute and under which nevelt contributions are made.

ARTICLE VI
INDIVIDUAL ACCOUNTS

Sec. 6.1 Participant Interest in Individual Accaurach Participant and Former Participant shalelsaich right, title and interest in the
balance of his Individual Account except as heréémgrovided. In no event shall his nonforfeitaliigerest exceed the amount to the cred
his Individual Account as the same may be adjustad time to time.

Sec. 6.2 Annual Statement to Participant. At leastually the Named Fiduciary shall advise eachidhaaint, Former Participant, and
Beneficiary for whom an Individual Account is héldreunder of the then fair market value of suclividdal Account.

ARTICLE VII
RETIREMENT

Sec. 7.1 Normal Retirement. A Participant may ecfiiom the employ of the Employer on or after hrial Retirement Date. A Participant's
Individual Account shall become nonforfeitable as Hormal Retirement Date.
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Sec. 7.2 Early Retirement. A Participant may redftioen the employ of the Employer on his Early Retient Date.

Sec. 7.3 Other Retirement. A Participant's retinemell commence on the Anniversary Date coincidith or next following a Participant's
termination of service with all Affiliated Compasié he retires under the provisions of any othgalified retirement plan of his Employer.

Sec. 7.4 Benefits on Retirement. Upon the retirdroéa Participant on or after his Normal Retiret@ate or his Early Retirement Date, his
entire Individual Account shall be held for his bét Said Participant shall receive payment fraslhdividual Account in a single lump st
in accordance with Article XI hereof as soon as imistratively practicable after his Individual Aaoat has been credited and adjusted (as
provided in Article V) as of the Anniversary Datencurrent with or next following his retiremenarfParticipants in the Plan as of March
31, 1994, the Named Fiduciary shall direct the T@s$o begin distribution prior to the time setlion the preceding sentence if the
Participant directs the Named Fiduciary in writing.

Sec. 7.5 Payments to a Participant Who is 70-12Five Percent Owner.

Notwithstanding Section 7.4, a Participant whoiatage 7-1/2 or who is a five percent owner shall begirer@ing distributions from the
Plan, as provided in Article XI, by his Requiredgd®ming Date as defined in

Section 11.4(i)(ii). A Participant is treated afive percent owner for purposes of this Sectionah8 Section 11.4(i)(ii) if such Participant i
five percent owner as defined in Section 416(ifhef Code (determined in accordance with Sectionbit vithout regard to whether the Plan
is top heavy) at any time during the Year endinthwr within the calendar year in which such owaiains age 66-1/2 or any subsequent
Year. Once distributions have begun to a five parogvner after his Required Beginning Date, theytmontinue to be distributed, even if
the Participant ceases to be a five percent ownarsubsequent Year.

Sec. 7.6 Final Contribution After Distribution o&Befits. If a Participant who has already receietistribution of his Individual Account
under this Article is entitled to an allocationasf Employer contribution under

Section 4.3 for the Year in which such distributiwas made, such contributions shall be paid td*#m¢icipant as soon as administratively
practicable following the completion of the alldoas under Article 1V for such Year.

ARTICLE VI
DEATH

Sec. 8.1 Benefits on Death. Upon the death of aciant who is in the service of the Employer, &idire Individual Account shall be held
for the benefit of his Beneficiary. Upon the
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death of a Participant whose service with the Eggridas terminated, his nonforfeitable interestgdeined under Section 10.2) in his
Individual Account which has not been distributédhe time of his death under Articles VII-X shb# held for the benefit of his Beneficiary.
His Beneficiary shall receive payment from his indual Account in a single lump sum in accordandth viwrticle XI hereof as soon as
administratively practicable after the Participamtidividual Account has been credited and adjugsdrovided in Article 1V) as of the
Anniversary Date concurrent with or next followitige Participant's death. The Named Fiduciary shidktt the Trustee to begin distribution
prior to the time set forth in the preceding seoteifithe Beneficiary directs the Named Fiduciaryiriting. Any Beneficiary who receives a
distribution of a portion of a Participant's Indlual Account by reason of a Participant's deathrpa August 23, 1984 shall be treated as
receiving such distribution in accordance with digtribution rules applicable to the Plan prioitirestatement effective April 1, 1985.

Sec. 8.2 Final Contribution After Payment of Betsefif the Individual Account of a deceased Paptcit whose Beneficiary has already
received a distribution of the Participant's Indisal Account under this Article is entitled to dlmeation of an Employer contribution under
Section 4.3 for the Year in which such distributieas made, such contributions shall be paid tdB#wmeficiary as soon as administratively
practicable following the completion of the alldoas under Article IV for such Year.

ARTICLE IX
DISABILITY

Sec. 9.1 Benefits on Disability. In the event afitmation of a Participant's employment due to bilg, his entire Individual Account shall
be held for his benefit. If the balance of the arént's Individual Account exceeds $3,500, theiBipant shall receive payment from his
Individual Account in a single lump sum in accordanvith Article XI hereof as soon as administraivgracticable after the allocations have
been completed and his Individual Account has lmeedited and adjusted (as provided in Article 1'8)adi the Anniversary Date concurrent
with or next following the date his Normal Retiremi®ate or earlier death occurs. The Named Fidyahall direct the Trustee to begin
distribution prior to the time set forth in the pegling sentence if the Participant directs the NhRiduciary in writing. If the balance of the
Participant's Individual Account does not excee®3, the Participant's entire Individual Accoumal be distributed to him in a single lump
sum as soon as administratively practicable dfieatlocations have been completed and his IndiVidecount has been credited and
adjusted (as provided in Article IV) as of the Avarisary Date of the Year in which the date of hisability occurs. The Named Fiduciary
shall direct the Trustee to begin distribution ptimthe time set forth in
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the preceding sentence if the Participant dirdedNamed Fiduciary in writing.

Sec. 9.2 Final Contribution After Payment of Betsefif a Participant who has already received #ibigion of his Individual Account under
this Article is entitled to an allocation of an Eloyer contribution under

Section 4.3 for the Year in which the distributiwas made, such contributions shall be paid to #rédipant as soon as administratively
practicable following the completion of the alldoas under Article IV for such Year.

ARTICLE X
TERMINATION BENEFITS

Sec. 10.1 Termination Other than by Reason of Dé&itability or Retirement.
If a Participant terminates his employment for a@gson other than retirement (whether normal dygaleath or Disability, such Participant
shall be entitled to such benefits as are heranafbvided in Section 10.2 at the time specifie@éction 10.3.

Sec. 10.2 Vested Interest. A Participant to whoenptovisions of Section 10.1 are applicable shakhbtitled (as a vested interest) to recei
percentage of the then balance to his credit inrdsvidual Account, if any, determined in accordamwith the following schedule:

Years of Service (Vesting)  Vested Interest

Less than 5 0%
5 or more 100%

A Participant who had no vested interest in then Rk of April 1, 1989 shall vest under the aboveedale. A Participant with a vested intel
in the Plan as of April 1, 1989 will retain his &g percentage under the schedule in effect uhéePlan as of March 31, 1989 and will
continue to have his vested percentage increasdef timat schedule until he is credited with fiveax&of Service (Vesting) at which time he
will become fully vested. Accordingly, those Pagants with 3 or 4 Years of Service (Vesting) adairch 31, 1989 will vest under the
following schedule:

Years of Service (Vesting) Vested Int erest
3 but fewer than 4 30%
4 but fewer than 5 40%
5 or more 100%

Sec. 10.3 Time of Distribution. If a Participardgimployment terminates for a reason other thareragnt (whether normal or early), death or
Disability, and the value of the vested portion of
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his Individual Account exceeds $3,500, the portbhis Individual Account to which he is entitledder Section 10.2 shall be distributed to
the Participant with his written consent. The dligttion shall be made in a single lump sum in adaoce with Article XI hereof as soon as
administratively practicable after his Individuat@unt has been credited and adjusted (as prouidédicle IV) as of the earlier of (i) the
Anniversary Date immediately following the date farticipant incurs a On€ear Break in Service following his terminationeshployment
provided the written consent of the Participangéuoh distribution is received by the Named Fidyciat later than 60 days after such
Anniversary Date, or

(i) the Anniversary Date following the date hisit@l Retirement Date or earlier death occurs, bttater than the time specified in Section
11.4. If the Participant does not elect to recéeedistribution when he is first eligible undee threceding sentence, he may elect to receive
the distribution of his Individual Account in a gie lump sum as soon as administratively practealfter his Individual Account has been
credited and adjusted (as provided in Article I1'¥)ad any subsequent Anniversary Date if he hasigeoWwritten consent to such distribution
to the Named Fiduciary not later than 60 days aftieh Anniversary Date. If, however, the vestedihed of the terminated Participant's
Individual Account does not exceed $3,500, theadkbhlance of the Participant's Individual Accoshmll be distributed to him in a single
lump sum as soon as administratively practicakikr dlfie allocations have been completed and hisithéal Account has been credited and
adjusted (as provided in Article IV) as of the Avanisary Date of the Year in which the Participaicurs a One-Year Break in Service. The
balance to the credit of a terminated Participartis Individual Account which is not vested unttex schedule in Section 10.2, if not
previously forfeited, shall be forfeited as of #elier of (i) the date his entire vested Individdacount balance has been distributed under
Article Xl or (i) the last day of the Year in whicsuch Participant incurs a Five-Year Break in ®enf the Participant is not entitled to any
portion of his Individual Account under Section2,the shall be deemed to have received a distoibatnd shall forfeit the balance of his
Individual Account on the date of his incurring aédYear Break in Service. The forfeited amount uriis

Section 10.3 shall remain in the Trust Fund andl sleaapplied as provided in Section 10.5. If arirer Participant is reemployed by an
Affiliated Company without incurring a Five-Year &k in Service, the portion of his Individual Acavwhich was forfeited hereunder shall
be restored to his Individual Account in full. Bircently unallocated forfeitures are not adequateftect the restoration, the Company or the
Affiliated Company shall make such additional cdnition to the Plan as is necessary to restoréottfieited portion of his Individual
Account. Any Participant (i) who incurred a terntioa of employment in a Plan Year beginning prindanuary 1, 1985, (ii) who was not
100% vested in his Individual Account upon termimaiand (iii) who received a distribution of a ve$tportion of his Individual Account in a
Year beginning prior to January 1, 1985 by readsuoh termination shall be treated as
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receiving such distribution in accordance with digribution, vesting and forfeiture rules applitzato the Plan prior to its restatement
effective April 1, 1985.

Sec. 10.4 Forfeiture and Return to Service Prig@amplete Distribution. After a Five-Year BreakService, a Participant to whom this
Article X is applicable, other than a Participaesdribed in Section 10.3, shall forfeit that partad the amount of his Individual Account to
which he is not entitled under Section 10.2 andatimeunt thus forfeited shall remain in the Trushérand shall be applied as provided in
Section 10.5. The amount forfeited by a Particigereunder shall be charged to his Individual Actaun the Anniversary Date as of which
he shall incur a Five-Year Break in Service. If Baaticipant returns to the service of the Emplafegr a Five-Year Break in Service, but
before the full payment of his Individual AccouBtnployer contributions after such Five-Year BrealService shall be allocated to a Parent
Company Stock Account and Other Investments Accestablished on behalf of such Participant whickegarate from the Individual
Account of such Participant to which is allocatésldccount balance attributable to service pridhtoFive-Year Break in Service.

Sec. 10.5 Application of Forfeitures. The forfe@sioccurring as provided in Sections 10.3 and 4i6al first be used to restore the accour
a Former Participant who has been located as pedvitd Section 11.8. If additional forfeitures rematfter full restorations under Section
11.8, then remaining forfeitures shall be usedettare accounts of Former Participants under Setta3. If additional forfeitures remain
thereafter, they shall be allocated as provideBeation 4.3(c)(ii) among the appropriate Parent @amy Stock Accounts and Other
Investments Accounts on the Anniversary Date offtlar the forfeiture occurs.

ARTICLE Xl
DISTRIBUTIONS

Sec. 11.1 Form of Payment. Except as provided ati@el11.4(d), whenever a Participant, Former Bigiint or Beneficiary is entitled to or
required to receive benefits hereunder as providdticles VIl to X, inclusive, the Named Fiduciashall direct the Trustee to pay such
benefits in a lump sum provided that a life annuitgy not be a part of a lump sum distribution. fhsttion of the amounts from a
Participant's Individual Account will be made ealyrin whole shares of Parent Company Stock and@dhee of any fractional share will be
paid in cash. The distribution which a Participangntitled to receive from his Parent Company Sthccount shall be equal to the number of
shares of Parent Company Stock credited to hismP@empany Stock Account as of the immediately @déany Allocation Date plus any
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stock dividends to which he is entitled under SQect.3(f). Any balance of his Other Investments &at as of the immediately preceding
Allocation Date, plus cash or in-kind dividendsatbich the Participant is entitled under Section(# ®ill be used to purchase for distribution
to him the maximum number of whole shares of Patampany Stock at the fair market value per sharef the date of purchase, and any
unexpended balance will be distributed to him ishca

Sec. 11.2 Consent to Distribution. If the vesteldubee of the Participant's Individual Account exd£83,500 and any part of the Individual
Account could be distributed to the Participanibefthe Participant attains (or would have attaihedt deceased) his Normal Retirement
Date, the Participant must consent in writing tg distribution of such Individual Account. The cen$ must be obtained in writing within 1
90-day period prior to the date benefit paymemd isommence. The Named Fiduciary shall notify taeiBipant of the right to defer any
distribution until his Normal Retirement Date. Suwitification shall be provided no less than 30-dagd no more than 90 days before be
payment is to commence and shall include a gedesaiription of the material features, and an exlan of the relative values of, the form
of benefit available under

Section 11.1 in a manner that would satisfy théceatequirements of

Section 417(a)(3) of the Code and a descriptioni®flirect rollover rights under Section 11.10thié vested balance of the Participant's
Individual Account does not exceed $3,500, thei€lpent, Former Participant, or Beneficiary does mave a right to delay the distribution,
but shall be provided with a notice of his direataver rights under Section 11.10. A distributimay commence less than 30 days after the
notice required under Treas. Reg. ss.1.411(a)-14.@iyen, provided that (i) the Named Fiduciargasly informs the Participant that the
Participant has a right to a period of at leasti&@s after receiving the notice to consider thasitat of whether or not to elect a distribution
(and, if applicable, a particular distribution apt), and

(i) the Participant, after receiving the noticéirenatively elects a distribution. The consenttloé Participant is not required to the extent that
a distribution is required to satisfy Section 4Q@qpor Section 415 of the Code.

Sec. 11.3 Minority or Disability of Distributee. Eing the minority or disability of a person entiléo receive benefits hereunder, the Named
Fiduciary may direct the Trustee to make paymeuessiich person directly to him or to his spouse i@lative or to any individual or
institution having custody of such person. Neittier Employer, the Named Fiduciary nor the Trustes! $e required to see to the applica
of any payments so made and the receipt of theep@yeluding the endorsement of a check or cheslall be conclusive as to all interested
parties.

Sec. 11.4 Time of Payment and Payment on Deathlwiltetstanding any other provisions of the Plam, fibllowing provisions shall be
applicable to the Plan:
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(a) Payment of benefits shall begin, unless th&dhaaint otherwise elects, not later than the &Gth after the Anniversary Date of the Year in
which the latest of the following events occurs:

(i) the Participant reaches the earlier of age 8si®Normal Retirement Date;

(i) the tenth anniversary of the date on whichBaeticipant commenced participation in the Platucg, but not later than the April 1 of the
calendar year following the calendar year in whtod Participant attains age 70-1/2; or

(iithe Participant terminates his service witle tBmployer, but in no event later than the Aprif the calendar year following the calendar
year in which the Participant attains ag-1/2.

If the Participant fails to consent to a distriloatiat a time when any part of the balance of tldévidual Account could be distributed prior to
the Participant's Normal Retirement Date, suchufaikhall be deemed to be an election to defer amement of payment of any benefit
under this Section 11.4(a).

(b) All distributions required under this Articlel Xhall be determined and made in accordance vethi@ 401(a)(9) of the Code and the
Treasury Regulations thereunder, including the mimm distribution incidental benefit requirementsToéas. Reg. ss.1.401(a)(9)-2.

(c) An election of a Participant to defer receipbenefits shall be made by submitting to the Narieldiciary a written statement signed by
the Participant, describing the benefits and the da which the Participant requests that the paysr@ommence; provided, however, a
Participant may not elect to defer receipt or comeeenent of receipt of benefits beyond his Requiedinning Date.

(d) If a Participant is employed by an Employepghis Required Beginning Date, the following minim distribution rules shall apply:

(i) As of the first Distribution Calendar Year, @tibutions shall commence to be made over one@fdlowing periods): (A) a period certain
equal to the Life Expectancy of the Participant{R)¥a period certain equal to the Joint and Lasvisor Expectancy of the Participant and
his spouse, if any;

(i) The amount required to be distributed for eaalendar year, beginning with distributions foe fivst Distribution Calendar Year, shall be
equal to the
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quotient obtained by dividing the Participant's Bfrby the Applicable Life Expectancy;

(ii)The minimum distribution required for the Piaipant's first Distribution Calendar Year shallinade on or before the Participant's
Required Beginning Date; provided that the Parsictpmay elect for the Named Fiduciary to directThastee to make that distribution on or
before December 31 of the first Distribution Calen¥ear;

(iv) If distribution of benefits to a Participana$ begun under this

Section 11.4(d) and the Participant retires, diespmes disabled or incurs any other terminaticengbloyment before his entire Individual
Account has been distributed to him, the remaipiodion of such Participant's Individual AccounaBibe distributed to him or to his
Beneficiary in a single lump sum as provided int®ec7.4, 8.1, 9.1 or 10.3, whichever is applicable

(e) If a Participant dies before the distributidrbenefits to him has begun under Section 11.1ribligion to his Beneficiary of his entire
Individual Account must be completed by Decembeof3the calendar year containing the fifth anniaeysof the death of such Participant.
The provisions of this Section 11.4(e) shall nqtlgpo the portion of the Participant's Individwstcount which is payable:

() to a Designated Beneficiary other than the iBipnt's surviving spouse under Section 11.1 dpefore December 31 of the calendar year
immediately following the calendar year in whicle tRarticipant died; or

(if) under Section 11.1 to a Designated Beneficiah is the surviving spouse of the Participarieast by the later of (A) the December 3
the calendar year immediately following the calendsar in which the Participant died and (B) thee®maber 31 of the calendar year in which
the Participant would have attained age 70-1/2.

If the Participant has no Designated Beneficiaigtrihution of the Participant's entire Individuatcount must be completed by December 31
of the calendar year containing the fifth anniveys# the Participant's death.

(f) If a portion of the Participant's Individual ount is payable to the Participant's survivingusgoand such spouse dies before distributions
to such spouse begin, the spouse shall be trestind #articipant under Section 11.4(e) with theepiion of the provisions of subsection (ii)
thereof.
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(9) Any portion of a Participant's Individual Acadipaid to a child shall be treated as if suchiporhas been paid to the Participant's
surviving spouse if such portion will become pagstiol the surviving spouse upon the date the chddites majority (or other designated
event permitted under regulations prescribed bySieretary of the Treasury).

(h) Distribution of a Participant's Individual Aamat is considered to begin on the Participant'suRed Beginning Date or, if Section 11.4(f)
is applicable, the date distribution is requiredbégin to the surviving spouse pursuant to Sedtiba(e)(ii).

(i) Definitions:

(i) Designated Beneficiary is the individual whadissignated as the Beneficiary under the Plandordance with Section 401(a)(9) of the
Code and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.

(i) The Required Beginning Date of a Participdmilsbe determined as follows:

(A) If the Participant attains age 70-1/2 after Braber 31, 1987, his Required Beginning Date isAgme@ 1 of the calendar year following the
calendar year in which the Participant attains &@d/2;

(B) If the Participant attains age 70-1/2 befoneuday 1, 1988 and was not a five percent ownerimwitie meaning of
Section 7.5, his Required Beginning Date is theilApof the calendar year following the calendaarm which the later of the Participant's
retirement or attainment of age 70-1/2 occurs;

(C) If a Participant is not a five percent ownethiri the meaning of Section 7.5 and attains ag&/Z@uring 1988 and has not retired as of
January 1, 1989, his Required Beginning Date isIApt1990; or

(D) If the Participant was a five percent ownerhiitthe meaning of Section 7.5 during any Year teigig after December 31, 1979, his
Required Beginning Date is the April 1 of the calenyear following the later of (1) the calendaarm which the Participant attains age 70-
1/2 or

(2) the earlier of the calendar year with or withihich ends the Year in which the Participant beesia five percent owner, or the calendar
year in which the Participant retire
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(iiFor the first distribution under Section 11d}(if any, Applicable Life Expectancy means thé&lkxpectancy (or Joint and Last Survivor
Expectancy) computed (by use of the expected retwltiples in Tables V and VI of Section 1.72-%loé Treasury Regulations) using the
attained age of the Participant

(or his spouse, if any) as of the Participant'sh{erspouse's) birthday in the applicable calegdar. Applicable Life Expectancy for each
subsequent distribution shall be the Life Expegfdiac Joint and Last Survivor Expectancy) as radaked. The Participant may elect whe
the Applicable Life Expectancy [to be used in cdting the required distributions] under Sectiond1d), if any] is his Life Expectancy or t
Joint and Last Survivor Expectancy of him and pisuse; provided, however, that the Participantaisp must be his Designated Beneficiary
in order for the required distributions to be mader the Joint and Last Survivor Expectancy of aimd his spouse. If the Participant fails to
elect before the Required Beginning Date, the Agapilie Life Expectancy shall be the Life Expectaotthe Participant (irrespective of
whether the Participant has a spouse) and suctEkiectancy shall be recalculated. The applicablenclar year shall be the first
Distribution Calendar Year and each such succeezfifendar year.

(iv) For purposes of Section 11.4(d), ParticipaBesefit means the balance of the Participant'&idaal Account as of the last valuation d

in the calendar year immediately preceding therbistion Calendar Year (valuation calendar yeacjeéased by the amount of any
contributions or forfeitures allocated to the Irdival Account as of dates in the valuation calerny@ar after the valuation date and decreased
by distributions made in the valuation calendamydeer the valuation date. For purposes of thigtiSe 11.4(i)(iv), if any portion of the
minimum distribution for the first Distribution Gaidar Year is made in the second Distribution GiderYear on or before the Required
Beginning Date, the amount of the minimum distribitmade in the second Distribution Calendar Y aatlde treated as if it had been made
in the immediately preceding Distribution Calenda&ar.

(v) Distribution Calendar Year means a calendar fe@awhich a minimum distribution is required. Fdistributions beginning before the
Participant's death, the first Distribution CalenWaar is the calendar year immediately precedmgcalendar year which contains the
Participant's Required Beginning Date. For distiins beginning after the Participant's death fitis¢ Distribution Calendar Year is the
calendar year
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in which distributions are required to begin pursua this
Section 11.4.

Sec. 11.5 Claims Procedure. The Named Fiduciary stadke all determinations as to the right of aeyson to receive a benefit. The denial
by the Named Fiduciary of a claim for benefits unitie Plan shall be stated in a written instrunsgégned by the Named Fiduciary and
delivered to or mailed to the claimant within 6Q/glafter receipt of the claim by the Named Fiducianless special circumstances requir
extension of time for processing the claim, in whi@se a determination shall be made as soon ab@pdut in no event later than 120 days
after receipt of the claim. Written notice of tha@ension shall be furnished to the claimant priothte termination of the initial 60-day period
and shall indicate the circumstances requiringetttension and the date by which the Named Fidu@apgcts to render its decision. The
written decision shall set forth:

(a) the specific reason or reasons for the denial,
(b) a specific reference to the pertinent provisiofithe Plan on which the denial is based;

(c) a description of any additional material omimhation necessary for the claimant to perfeca@chnd an explanation of why such mate
or information is necessary; and

(d) a statement that the claimant may:

(i) request a review upon written application te tlamed Fiduciary;
(i) review pertinent plan documents; and

(iii) submit issues and comments in writing.

If notice of the denial is not furnished in accarda with the above procedure, the claim shall les@el denied and the claimant shall be
permitted to proceed with the review procedureeguest by the claimant for a review of the deniadrcmust be delivered to the Named
Fiduciary within 60 days after receipt by suchmlant of written notification of the denial of suclaim. The Named Fiduciary shall, not later
than 60 days after receipt of a request for a vevirake a determination concerning the claim. #csgl circumstances require, the Named
Fiduciary shall notify the claimant that an extemsof time for processing, not in excess of 120sd&yer receipt of the request for review, is
necessary. A written statement stating the decisioreview, the specific reasons for the decisamul the specific provisions of the Plan on
which the decision is based shall be mailed owvdedid to the claimant within such 60 (or 120) dayiqu. If the decision on review is not
furnished within the appropriate time, the clainalsbe deemed denied on review. All
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communications from the Named Fiduciary to thenckait shall be written in a manner calculated tot@erstood by the claimant.

Sec. 11.6 Named Fiduciary's Duty to Trustee. The&thFiduciary will notify the Trustee at the appiafe time of all facts which may be
necessary hereunder for the proper allocationaeases, decreases, expenses, and contributioRartigipants, the proper payment or
distribution of benefits, or the proper performantany other act required of the Trustee hereuntdes Named Fiduciary will notify the
Trustee of such facts as are needed by the Trtssfgerform its functions under the Trust Agreem@ie Named Fiduciary will secure
appropriate elections, directions, and designation®articipants, Former Participants, and Berefies provided for in the Plan.

Sec. 11.7 Duty to Keep Named Fiduciary Informe®isftributee's Current Address. Each ParticipantBewdeficiary must file with the
Named Fiduciary from time to time in writing hisgi@ffice address and each change of post offidesad. Any communication, statemen
notice addressed to a Participant or Beneficiatjsatast post office address filed with the Narkétliciary or if no address is filed with the
Named Fiduciary then at his last post office adslessshown on an Employer's records, will be bipdim the Participant and his Benefici
for all purposes of the Plan. Neither the Namedi€imry nor the Trustee shall be required to sefchr locate a Participant or Beneficiary.

Sec. 11.8 Failure to Claim Benefits. In connectigth the payment of any benefits, the Named Fidycshall mail by registered or certified
mail to the Participant or Beneficiary at his lasbwn address his distribution under the Plarhéfllamed Fiduciary notifies the Participant
or Beneficiary that he is entitled to a distributiand also notifies him of the provisions of Seetld.7 and this Section 11.8 and the
Participant or Beneficiary fails to claim his beitefinder the Plan or make his current address krtowthe Named Fiduciary within three
years after such distribution or notification, theamed Fiduciary, at the end of such tl-year period, will direct that all unpaid amountsieti
would have been payable to such Participant or fi@asy will be forfeited as of the next Allocatidbate and applied as provided in Section
10.5. In the event that the Participant or Benaficis subsequently located, the Participant'sR&@empany Stock Account will be restored
and credited with the number of whole shares oéRaCompany Stock and cash for any fractional stieiehave an aggregate fair market
value equal to the aggregate value of his Individuaount as of the date that account was forfeifdw shares of Parent Company Stock and
cash credited to his Parent Company Stock Accduaidt Be distributed to the Participant or Benefigjand an Employer shall contribute an
amount to the Plan which is equal to the amourntibiged under the terms of this Section 11.8 #odktent that such amount cannot be
reinstated through forfeitures occurring during Year of repayment.
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Sec. 11.9 Distribution Pursuant to Qualified DoriteRElations Orders.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plarhe contrary, if the provisions of a "qualified destic relations order" within the meani

of

Section 414(p) of the Code provide that distribogighall be made to an "alternate payee" withimteaning of Section 414(p)(8) of the Ci
prior to the time that the Participant with respcivhom the alternate payee's benefits are deattaths age 50 or would be entitled to a
distribution of assets from the Plan, the Namediéiary shall direct the Trustee to commence paysignthe alternate payee as soon as
administratively practicable following the later @fthe receipt of such qualified domestic relasmrder by the Named Fiduciary or (i) the
date the Named Fiduciary receives the alternategdayvritten consent to such distribution if tHeraate payee's benefits under the Plan as
determined by the provisions of the qualified dotica®lations order exceed $3,500. The Named Fatyahall determine whether an order
constitutes a "qualified domestic relations ordeithin the meaning of Section 414(p) of the Code.

Sec. 11.10 Tax Withholding and Participant's DiRRollover. If a Participant, Former ParticipantBeneficiary receives a distribution or
withdrawal from the Plan consisting of cash or &sether than Parent Company Stock with a combiradie (excluding the value of Parent
Company Stock) in excess of $200 (the "Non-Paremh@any Stock Distribution"), the Trustee shall \uithd the lesser of (a) 100% of the
Non-Parent Company Stock Distribution made to thati€lpant, Former Participant or Beneficiary or

(b) 20% of the value of the taxable portion of #mtire distribution made after December 31, 199&kwhonstitutes an eligible rollover
distribution within the meaning of Section 402(3)¢4 the Code. Any amount withheld shall be depaklty the Trustee with the Internal
Revenue Service for the purpose of paying theidigte's federal income tax liability associatethwtie distribution or withdrawal.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, commegadm and after January 1, 1993, each Participaoh Eormer Participant and et

spouse of a Participant or Former Participant dfetjiven the right to elect [pursuant to Sectibf(4)(31) of the Code] to rollover all or any
portion of the taxable amount of such person'siliigion or withdrawal directly to an eligible retiment plan as defined in Section 402(c)(8)
(B) of the Code as limited by Section 402(c)(9}re Code and, to the extent a direct rolloverégteld by any such person, the withholding
requirements of this Section 11.10 will not apftgach such election shall be in writing on a forrasaribed by the Named Fiduciary for such
purpose and given to the Participant, Former Rpait or spouse within a reasonable period of pmer to the distribution or withdrawal.
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ARTICLE Xl
NOTICES

Sec. 12.1 Notice. As soon as practicable afterticRent, Former Participant or Beneficiary makeequest for payment, the Named
Fiduciary shall notify the Trustee of the followimformation and give such directions as are necgsy advisable under the circumstances:

(a) name and address of the Participant, Formeicant or Beneficiary,
(b) amount to be distributed, and
(c) any other information required by the Trusteeféderal or state income tax withholding and répg purposes.

Sec. 12.2 Modification of Notice. At any time amdrh time to time after giving the notice as prodder in Section 12.1, the Named
Fiduciary may modify such original notice or anypsequent notice by means of a further notice acesto the Trustee but any action taken
or payments made by the Trustee pursuant to a pokice shall not be affected by a subsequent eotic

Sec. 12.3 Reliance on Notice. Upon receipt of astica as provided in this Article XII, the Trustekall promptly take whatever action and
make whatever payments are called for thereirgiitdintended that the Trustee may rely upon tf@mation and directions in such notice
absolutely and without question. However, the Teeshay call to the attention of the Named Fiducéary error or oversight which the
Trustee believes to exist in any notice.

ARTICLE Xl
AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF PLAN

Sec. 13.1 Amendment or Termination by Company.rttame the Company acting through its governindyomay amend or modify the
Plan, retroactively or otherwise, or may termirtaee Plan, by means of written notice to the Trustebject, however, to the other provisions
of this Article XlIl. Such termination may be madéhout consent being obtained from the Trusteg,EEmployer or Affiliated Company, tt
Committee, the Participants or their Beneficiarlesployees or any other interested person. Alsétae shall be considered terminated il
Company ceases business operations or if thereamalete discontinuance of Employer contributions.

Sec. 13.2 Effect of Amendment. No amendment or fiadion hereof by the Company, unless made torgettie approval of the
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Commissioner of Internal Revenue or other goverrnaidmreau or agency, shall:

(a) operate retroactively to reduce or divest bentvested interest in any Individual Account orgduce or divest any benefit then payable
hereunder; or

(b) change the duties or responsibilities of thestee without the written consent or approval efThustee.

Each such amendment shall be in writing signedly authorized officers of the Company with suchsents or approval, if any, as
provided above and shall become effective whenwgrddyy the Company unless a different effectivie daspecified in the amendment. The
Committee shall give written notice to all Parteis and to the Trustee of all amendments whicimade to this Plan; provided, however,
that such notice shall not be a condition of tHeativeness of any such amendment.

Sec. 13.3 Distribution on Termination or Disconinge of Contributions. Upon termination of the Rdatomplete discontinuance of
contributions to the Plan, any amount of the TRustd previously unallocated, including any amoumis suspense account established undel
Section 5.1, shall be allocated (unless such dimtavould violate Section 5.1), and the Individdalcounts of all Participants, Former
Participants, and Beneficiaries shall thereupoarzebecome fully vested and nonforfeitable to tkterd then funded. The Trustee shall
deduct from the Trust Fund all unpaid charges ampemses including those relating to said termimatéxcept as the same may be paid by the
Employer. The Named Fiduciary shall then adjustifil@ance of all Individual Accounts on the basishaf net value of the Trust Fund. The
Named Fiduciary shall direct the Trustee to distiéthe amount to the credit of each Participaotirfer Participant, and Beneficiary when
appropriate administrative procedures have beemlaed. If any amount in a suspense account shabbe allocable because of the
provisions of Section 5.1, such amount shall bernetd to the Employer. Upon any complete discomtirte of contributions, the assets of the
Trust Fund shall be held and administered by thest€e for the benefit of the Participants of thepleryer discontinuing contributions in the
same manner and with the same powers, rights,sdaitié privileges herein described until the Trustd=with respect to such Employer has
been fully distributed. Upon the partial terminatiof the Plan, the Individual Accounts of affeciatticipants, Former Participants, and
Beneficiaries shall thereupon be and become fudsted and nonforfeitable to the extent then furadetishall be distributed to such
Participants, Former Participants and Beneficianiken all appropriate administrative proceduresshaen completed. Subject to the
requirements of Section 11.10 and notwithstandmgaiher provisions of the Plan, any distributiardar this Section 13.3 shall be made in a
single lump sum distribution as soon as administbt practicable after the later of (i) the termiion of the Plan or (ii) the receipt
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following application of a favorable determinatilatter from the Internal Revenue Service with respe the termination of the Plan.

Sec. 13.4 Reversion of Contributions to Employexcdpt as provided in Section 3.3 and Section 1818ger no circumstances or conditions
shall the Trust Fund or any portion thereof reteny Employer or be used for or diverted to thedjit of anyone other than Participants,
Former Participants and Beneficiaries, it beingaratbod that the Trust Fund shall be for the exadusenefit of Participants, Former
Participants and Beneficiaries.

Sec. 13.5 Amendment of Vesting Schedule. At ang tihat the vesting schedule of the Plan is ameratetie Plan is amended in any way
that directly or indirectly affects the computatiofithe Participant's nonforfeitable interest ia hidividual Account, each Participant who has
completed at least five Years (or, for Years bemigmfter December 31, 1988 with respect to Paaicis who complete at least one Hour of
Service after April 1, 1989, each Participant wias bompleted at least three Years), whether ocardecutive, during each of which he has
completed not fewer than 1,000 Hours of Servicey giact to have his vested interest in his Indigiddccount determined under the vesting
schedule in effect prior to such amendment. Antelranade under the preceding sentence may be atadg time within 60 days after the
later of the date:

(a) the amendment is adopted;
(b) the amendment becomes effective; or
(c) the Participant is issued written notice of #mendment by the Named Fiduciary.

An election under this Section shall be made irrittam instrument delivered to the Named Fiduciang once made, shall be irrevocable. For
the purposes of this Section, a Participant sletidnsidered to have completed the five Yearddoryears beginning after March 31, 1989
with respect to certain Participants described abtivee Years) described in this Section if hél $laae completed such Years prior to the
end of the period during which he could make ant&la hereunder.

Sec. 13.6 Merger or Consolidation of Plan. In thent¢ of any merger or consolidation of the Plarhwitr transfer in whole or in part of the
assets and liabilities of the Trust Fund to, ancthest fund held under any other plan of defeethpensation maintained or to be establi
for the benefit of all or some of the Participaintshis Plan, the assets of the Trust Fund applcetbsuch Participants shall be transferred to
the other trust fund only if:

(a) each Participant would (if either this Plarthe other plan had then terminated) receive a itamehediately after
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the merger, consolidation, or transfer which isadqo or greater than the benefit he would havenleegitled to receive immediately before
the merger, consolidation, or transfer (if thisrPtead then terminated); and

(b) such other plan and trust fund are qualifiedarBection 401(a) of the Code and exempt fronuteder Section 501(a) of the Code.
ARTICLE XIV
COMMITTEE

Sec. 14.1 Committee Composition. The Company mapiapa Committee consisting of no fewer than ame @0 more than five members
determined by the Company. The Company may remoyereember of the Committee at any time and a memmiagrresign by written noti
to the Company. Any vacancy in the membership @fGbmmittee shall be filled by appointment of tlwerning body of the Company, but
pending the filling of any such vacancy the thenmbers of the Committee may act hereunder as ththeghalone constitute the full
Committee.

Sec. 14.2 Committee Actions. Any and all acts ameigions of the Committee shall be by at least ity of the then members, but the
Committee may delegate to any one or more of itsbsgs the authority to sign notices or other doasien its behalf or to perform
ministerial acts for it, in which event the Trustae any other person may accept such notice, deatuon act without question as having
been authorized by the Committee.

Sec. 14.3 Committee Procedure. The Committee maypded not, call or hold formal meetings and aegisions made or action taken
pursuant to written approval of a majority of thet members shall be sufficient. The Committeel shaintain adequate records of its
decisions which records shall be subject to inspedty the Company, Employer, any Participant, FarParticipant, Beneficiary, and any
other person to the extent required by law, buy tmkthe extent that they apply to such personoAtie Committee may designate one of its
members as Chairman and one of its members ast&gcaad may establish policies and proceduresrgovgit as long as the same are not
inconsistent with the terms of the Plan.

Sec. 14.4 Delegation to Committee and Company'g fuEurnish Information. The Committee shall periche duties and may exercise the
powers and discretion given to it in this Plan &adlecisions and actions may be relied upon bgetons affected thereby. The Trustee may
rely without question upon any notices, directiarspther documents received from the Committee. Company and each Employer shall
furnish the Committee with all data and informataailable to the Company which the Committee nesgsonably require in order to

perform its
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duties. The Committee may rely without questionrupay such data or information furnished by the Gany and each Employer.

Sec. 14.5 Construction of Plan and Trustee's Rediafiny and all matters involving the Plan, inchglbut not limited to any and all disputes
which may arise involving Participants, Former Rgrants, and Beneficiaries and/or the Trusteel $teateferred to the Committee. The
Committee has the exclusive discretionary authadtygonstrue the terms of the Plan and the exaudiscretionary authority to determine
eligibility for all benefits hereunder. Any suchteeminations or interpretations of the Plan adofgthe Committee shall be final and
conclusive and shall bind all parties. The Trustes rely upon the decision of the Committee witkpet to any question concerning the
meaning, interpretation, or application of any ps@n of the Plan.

Sec. 14.6 Committee Member's Abstention in Cased\ing Own Rights.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Articl#V/, no Committee member shall vote or act upon aratter involving his own right:
benefits, or participation in the Plan.

Sec. 14.7 Counsel to Committee. The Committee mgage agents to assist it and may engage legasebwho may be legal counsel for
Company. All reasonable expenses incurred by tharittee may be paid from the Trust Fund.

Sec. 14.8 Powers and Duties. In addition to anyliedgpowers and duties which may be needed to @arryhe provisions of the Plan, the
Committee shall have the following specific powansl duties:

(a) To direct the Trustee as to investments inf@empany Stock;
(b) To make and enforce such rules and regulatisnisshall deem necessary or proper for the effichidministration of the Plan;

(c) To authorize disbursements from the Trust Famy instructions of the Committee to the Trustealle evidenced in writing and signed
by a member of the Committee delegated with suthogsity by a majority of the Committee); and

(d) To review the activities of any person desigdab carry out the powers or duties of the Congaittind to report to the governing body of
the Company at least once each Year on the oatailnistration of the Plan.
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ARTICLE XV
MISCELLANEOUS

Sec. 15.1 No Employment or Compensation Agreeniwithing contained in the Plan shall be construegivdag any person or entity any
legal or equitable right against the Company, ampByer, any Affiliated Company, their stockholderspartners, officers or directors, the
Named Fiduciary, or the Trustee, except as the snalkbe specifically provided in the Plan. Noalslanything in the Plan give al
Participant or other Employee the right to be regdiin the service of an Employer. The employméiailgpersons by an Employer shall
remain subject to termination by such Employehtmtame extent as if the Plan had never been @xkcut

Sec. 15.2 Spendthrift Provision. Except as providgthe terms of a domestic relations order whictidtermined to be qualified under
Section 414(p) of the Code, no Participant, ForReticipant, or Beneficiary shall have the righassign or transfer his interest hereunder,
nor shall his interest be subject to claims ofdneditors or others, it being understood that @vsions of the Plan shall be for the exclusive
benefit of those designated herein.

Sec. 15.3 Construction. It is the intention of ekahployer that the Plan be qualified under Secdfidh of the Code, and all provisions hereof
should be construed to that resuilt.

Sec. 15.4 Titles. Titles of Articles and Sectioesdof are for convenience only and shall not besiclemed in construing the Plan.

Sec. 15.5 Texas Law Applicable. The Plan and e&db provisions shall be construed and their vlidetermined by the laws of the Statt
Texas.

Sec. 15.6 Successors and Assigns. The Plan shiaiihtiieg upon the successors and assigns of thep@wayrand each Employer and the
Trustee and upon the heirs and personal represa&stalf those individuals who become Participartebnder.

Sec. 15.7 Allocation of Fiduciary Responsibility Bagmed Fiduciary. The Named Fiduciary may, by wntinstrument, allocate some or al
its responsibilities to another fiduciary, includithe Trustee, or designate another person to catrgome or all of its fiduciary
responsibilities. Each fiduciary to whom resporigibs are allocated by the Named Fiduciary willfbenished a copy of the Plan and their
acceptance of such responsibility will be made ¢meaing in writing to act in the capacity desigatehe Named Fiduciary shall not be lia
for an act or omission of any person (who is alleda fiduciary responsibility or who is designateaarry out such responsibility) in
carrying out a fiduciary responsibility except
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to the extent that with respect to the allocatiodesignation, continuation thereof, or implementabr establishment of the allocation or
designation procedures the Named Fiduciary (i)ndidperform all of his duties and responsibilittes] exercise his powers hereunder witt
care, skill, prudence, and diligence under theuoirstances then prevailing that a prudent man aatilige capacity and familiar with such
matters would use in the conduct of an enterpridike character and with like aims, (ii) knowingbarticipates in or knowingly undertakes
conceal an act or omission of another fiduciarthefPlan, with the knowledge that such act or oimiss a breach of fiduciary responsibili
(iii) did not make reasonable efforts under thewinstances to remedy a breach of fiduciary respitgiof which the Named Fiduciary has
knowledge, or (iv) did not carry out its specifesponsibilities, in accordance with the standatdosth in (i) above, and as a result, it has
enabled another fiduciary of the Plan to commitesabh. Any person or group of persons may serweore than one fiduciary capacity with
respect to the Plan.

Sec. 15.8 Expenses of Administration. The reasenappenses incident to the operation of the Ptenyding the compensation of personnel
employed pursuant to Section 14.7, but excludimiérage commissions, taxes and other costs incidehe purchase and sale of securities,
shall be paid by the Employer. Except to the expaid by an Employer, the Named Fiduciary shalkeathe Trustee to pay all expenses
incurred in the administration of the Plan, inchglexpenses of the Committee and expenses and neatfman of the Trustee.

Sec. 15.9 Indemnification of Fiduciaries. The Enyploand the Plan shall each indemnify and hold kessithe members of the Committee,
members of the respective governing bodies of thpl&yers, any administrator and any other person iwlileemed to be a “fiduciary" under
either statutory or common law and who is also ampleyee, officer or director of the Company or dfillated Company from and against
any damages, judgments, settlements, costs, chargepenses incurred in connection with the deferisany action, suit or proceeding to
which they may be a party or with which they maytreatened or in connection with any appeal thenefoy virtue of any act or omission
their respective capacities for the Plan excepiiécextent that such act or omission arises frargtiess negligence or willful misconduct of
such fiduciary; provided, however, that notwithstiaug anything to the contrary herein, the foregaimggmnification shall extend and be
effective only to the extent that the same shallddel and enforceable under all applicable laws.
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ARTICLE XVI
ADOPTION BY AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Sec. 16.1 Transfer of Employment to Another Employ¢hen an Employee's employment with any Emplayéerminated, but such
Employee continues to be a Participant by reasaoutinued employment by another Employer, thei&psant concerned shall not be
considered to have changed Employers for purpdséstermining the Participant's eligibility, vegiinights, participation, and Plan benefits.
An Employee who was a Participant when so transfierind who is otherwise an eligible Employee,|stwadtinue as a Participant in the P
as adopted by his new Employer (whether the Compamayother Employer) and shall continue withowt equirement or re-enroliment
unless otherwise required by the Plan. In suchteedimotices, elections, designations, directiand the like theretofore made shall continue
in effect. All interests then credited to the Rapnt shall constitute interests credited to thgi€ipant under the Plan as adopted by his new
Employer (whether the Company or another Employemployer contributions shall, subject to the teand limitations of the Plan, contin

to be made by the Participant's new Employer (wdrettie Company or another Employer). Any portiomisfindividual Account which is
forfeited shall be allocated to the Individual Aoods of Participants who are Employees of the Eggglavhich originally made the
contributions so forfeited.

Sec. 16.2 Contributions and Forfeitures. Each &pant shall have his Individual Account crediteithvhis share of his former Employer's
contributions and with his share of his new Empitsyeontributions. The Annual Compensation receiweduch Participant from each
Employer during the portion of the Year employedaoyEmployer shall constitute the basis for higcation of that particular Employer's
contribution. Forfeitures shall be applied as pded in Section 10.5 only for the benefit of thetgrants employed by the Employer for
whom the Participant works or last worked at theetthe forfeiture occurs.

Sec. 16.3 Transfers of Employment Between Affilis@mpanies. If an Employee of one Affiliated Compé&ransfers to the employment of
another Affiliated Company and such Affiliated Ccang has a comparable plan and trust agreemeritrtiséee of each plan and trust shall
make suitable arrangements for the transfer o&tisets held in his Individual Account from the Réfithe former employer to the plan of the
successor employer. The Employee will be granteditfor Years of Service (Vesting) with the forneanployer and will not be deemed to
have terminated his employment. Annual Compensditam the former employer will be considered toArmual Compensation from the
successor employer.

If an Employee participating in this Plan transfiershe employment of an Affiliated Company whiabed not have a comparable plan in
force, he shall not be deemed to have terminated
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employment with the Employer. The value of his \ndiial Account will be held for his benefit untiéherminates employment with all
Affiliated Companies, dies or retires in accordanith Article VII, at which time the value of hisidividual Account will be distributed to
him or his Beneficiary as provided elsewhere hemdmfurther Employer contributions will be made luia behalf, but he will be granted
credit for Years of Service (Vesting) with the Aiited Company. In the event that he is reempldyedn Employer, he shall immediately
become a Participant in this Plan.

Sec. 16.4 Action by Company. The Employers delegatke Company the authority to amend the Planpke the Trustee, or a Committee
member, appoint a new or additional Trustee or Cidteenmember, or take all other actions concerttiegPlan without joinder or approval
of the other Employers.

Sec. 16.5 Termination of Employer's Status as iaféld Company. Termination of an Employer's statian Affiliated Company other than
by merger or liquidation into the Company shalirigrate the Plan and the Trust Agreement as addptedch Employer unless, and except
to the extent that, the governing body of the Camypshall adopt a resolution consenting to the cortince of the Plan and the Trust
Agreement as adopted by the Employer, specifyimglitions therefor, such as amendments to the Ridrite Trust Agreement as adopte!
the Employer and the investment in, dispositiodistribution of Parent Company Stock, and the gowey body of the Employer shall
consent to and adopt such conditions, investmerttste like.

ARTICLE XVII
THE TRUSTEE

Sec. 17.1 Trust Fund. A Trust Fund has been creatédvill be maintained for the purposes of thenPéand the monies thereof will be
invested in accordance with the terms of the TAggeement which forms a part of the Plan. All Enygocontributions will be paid into the
Trust Fund, and all benefits under the Plan wilph&l from the Trust Fund.

Sec. 17.2 Trustee's Duties. Except as otherwisafgyadly provided in the Trust Agreement, the Tiesss obligations, duties and
responsibilities are governed solely by the terfrth® Trust Agreement, reference to which is henelayle for all purposes.

Sec. 17.3 Benefits Only from Trust. Any person hgwvany claim under the Plan will look solely to tmsets of the Trust Fund for
satisfaction. In no event will any Employer or arfyits officers, Employees, agents, members dbdzrd of directors, the Trustee, any
successor trustee, or any member of the Commibigekable in their individual capacities to any g@r whomsoever, under the provisions of
the Plan or Trust Agreement, absent a
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breach of fiduciary responsibility determined punsito the applicable provisions of ERISA.

Sec. 17.4 Trust Fund Applicable Only to PaymerBefefits. The Trust Fund will be used and appliely @ accordance with the provisions
of the Plan, to provide the benefits thereof, exesprovided in Section 15.8 regarding paymermtdofiinistrative expenses, and no part of
corpus or income of the Trust Fund will be used dordiverted to, purposes other than for the esiekibenefit of Participants and other
persons thereunder entitled to benefits.

Sec. 17.5 Texas Trust Code. Although it is intentthedl the foregoing powers of the Trustee be applehereunder, it is also intended tha
provisions of the Texas Trust Code, and any amentiibkereto, not inconsistent with the above enatedrpowers or other provisions of
Plan, shall be applicable in the administratiomhef Trust Fund.

Sec. 17.6 Voting Rights. At each annual or speuniting of the stockholders of Capital SouthwespGiation or by actions taken without a
meeting, the Trustee may vote or refrain from \@tmy and all shares of Parent Company Stock hetiel Trust Fund in such manner as
deemed, in the Trustee's sole discretion, to ltledrest interest of Participants and Beneficiafiée Committee may from time to time dir
the Trustee as to the manner of voting such shanesthe Trustee shall follow such instructions sinall bear no responsibility for the
propriety of the decisions of the Committee.

ARTICLE XVIII
INVESTMENTS

Sec. 18.1 Investment of Contributions and TrustefssAll Employer contributions in cash and anyeotbash received by the Trust Fund
attributable to Employer contributions under tharRlincluding dividends, will first be used to payrrent obligations of the Trust Fund, and
any excess will be used either to pay other ohbgatof the Trust Fund, to buy Parent Company Stamk holders of outstanding stock or
newly issued or treasury stock or to make othed@ntiinvestments; provided, however, that at ales the Trustee shall attempt to invest
100% of the Trust Fund assets in Parent Compargk$tnsistent with market availability or other di@ions. The Committee may from tir
to time direct the Trustee as to the extent of stvent in Parent Company Stock and the Trusteéfstialv such instructions and shall bear
no responsibility for the propriety of the investmeéecision of the Committee. All purchases of Rafeompany Stock shall be made at a
price, or at prices, which in the judgment of theskee do not exceed the fair market value of shetes of Parent Company Stock, which
may be above the quoted market price on a natss@ilrities exchange or in the over-the-counter atatkno
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current obligations of the Trust Fund are outstagdind unpaid and the Trustee determines thairitttse best interest of the Trust Fund, the
Trustee may invest funds of the Trust Fund temjigrar securities issued or guaranteed by the Wh8etes of America or any agency
thereof, in certificates of deposit, or in shomrtecommercial paper, or such funds may be held ¢earjy in cash.

ARTICLE XIX
TOP HEAVY PROVISIONS

Sec. 19.1 Minimum Allocation Requirements. Notwittmgling the provisions of

Section 4.3, for any Year in which the Plan is @ Heavy Plan, the requirement for 1,000 Hours o¥ige shall not apply and Employer
contributions and forfeitures which are allocate@ny Participant who on the last day of the Year Non-Key Employee who has satisfied
the eligibility requirements of Section 2.1 shaik e less than the lesser of (i) three percentioh Participant's Annual Compensation [as
defined in Section 5.1(0)(vi)] or (ii) the larggsrcentage of Employer contributions, as a pergenté the first $200,000 (or, beginning April
1, 1988, such other amount equal to the Compemshiiitation as defined in Section 1.5) of the Ash@ompensation [as defined in Sec!
5.1(0)(vi)] of Participants who are Key Employeakpcated to any such Participant who is a Key Exygé for that Year; provided, however,
if an Employer maintains a defined benefit planakhilesignates this Plan to satisfy Section 40116rof the Code, (ii) above shall not apply.

Sec. 19.2 Adjustment to Limitation on Allocatiodotwithstanding the provisions of Sections 5.1(@)(8)(1) and 5.1(0)(ix)(B)(1),
beginning with the first Year beginning after Dedem31, 1983 in which the Plan is a Top Heavy Pla following provisions shall be
applicable to Section 5.1 of the Plan:

(a) Section 5.1(0)(viii)(B)(1) shall be revised sybstituting "1.0" for "1.25" and the numeratotiud fraction described in Section 5.1(0)(viii)
(D)(1) shall be revised by substituting "$41,500t ¥$51,875" unless (i) the Plan would not be a Heavy Plan as defined in Section 20.4(a)
if "90%" were substituted for 60% in such definitj@and (ii) the minimum allocation requirementsSefction 20.1 for a Participant who is a
Non-Key Employee are satisfied and, in applying suavigions, "four percent" is substituted for "thggercent;" and

(b) Section 5.1(0)(ix)(B)(1) shall be revised byostituting "1.0" for "1.25" unless (i) the Plan wdunot be a Top Heavy Plan as defined in
Section 20.4(a) if "90%" were substituted for 6a¥%such definition, and (ii) the minimum benefit sdg@ments of Section 416(h)(2)(A) of the
Code are satisfied
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for all participants in the defined benefit penspian who are Non-Key Employees.

Sec. 19.3 Vesting Schedule. Notwithstanding th@ipians of Section 10.2, beginning with the firgtaf in which the Plan is a Top Heavy
Plan, the following provisions shall be applicatdeSection 10.2 of the Plan.

(a) Except as provided in Section 19.3(b) belowheRarticipant shall be entitled (as a vested éstgito receive the greater of the vested
interest calculated pursuant to Article X or a patage of the then combined balance to his cnediiis Parent Company Stock Account and
Other Investments Account determined in accordavittethe following schedule:

Years of Service (Vesting) Vested Interest
Less than 3 0%
3 or more 100%
(b) The schedule in Section 19.3(a) above sh all not apply to the

Individual Account of any Participant who does petform an Hour of Service after the Determinatimte on which the Plan first became a
Top Heavy Plan; any such Participant's vestedestén his Parent Company Stock Account and Otinexdtments Account shall be
determined by applying the schedule in Section ®0tBe Plan as applicable to the Plan prior toRkeérmination Date on which the Plan
first became a Top Heavy Plan.

Sec. 19.4 Definitions.

(a) "Top Heavy Plan" means the Plan for a Yearr@gg after December 31, 1983, if the Plan is thiy plan maintained by an Employer
and the top heavy ratio as of the Determinatiore@ateeds 60%. The top heavy ratio is a fractlmntumerator of which is the sum of the
present value of the Individual Accounts of all Kemployees as of the Determination Date, the doutions due as of the Determination
Date, and distributions made within the five-yearipd immediately preceding the Determination Qateluding distributions under a
terminated plan which if it had not been terminataxlild have been required to be included in aneggiion group), and the denominator of
which is a similar sum determined for all Employ€HBse top heavy ratio shall be calculated withegiard to (i) the Individual Account of a
Participant who is not a Key Employee but who w&eg Employee in a prior Year, (i) the Individuatcount of any individual who has not
performed any services for an Employer at any tiltnéng the five-year period ending on the DeterrtiaraDate, and (iii) voluntary
deductible Employee contributions, if any. The baavy ratio, including distributions, rollover atrensfers, to the
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extent such items must be taken into account, sleatalculated in accordance with Section 416 ®fCbde and the regulations thereunder. If
an Employer maintains other qualified plans (ingtgda simplified employee pension plan) or has ewaintained one or more defined ber
plans which have covered or could cover a Partitipathis Plan, this Plan is top heavy for a Ykaginning after December 31, 1983 only if
it is part of the Required Aggregation Group, ameltop heavy ratio for both the Required AggregaGuoup and the Permissive Aggregal
Group exceeds 60%. The top heavy ratio shall brulzted as described above, taking into accoumtiatis within the aggregation group and
with reference to Determination Dates that fallhivitthe same calendar year; provided that if angefibenefit plan is included in the
aggregation group, the present value of accruedfligifinstead of account balances) of participamtbat plan shall be computed for
purposes of calculating the top heavy ratio. Therwex benefit under a defined benefit plan in tbéhnumerator and the denominator of the
top heavy ratio are increased for any distributtban accrued benefit made in the five-year peeinding on the Determination Date. The
accrued benefit of a Participant other than a Keapleyee shall be determined under (i) the methaahy, that uniformly applies for accrual
purposes under all defined benefit plans maintaimethe Employer, or (ii) if there is no such methas if such benefit accrued not more
rapidly than the slowest accrual rate permittedeurtide fractional rule of Section 411(b)(1)(C) loé tCode. The value of account balances anc
the present value of accrued benefits will be deised as of the most recent Allocation Date this faithin or ends with the 12-month

period ending on the Determination Date, exceragided in Section 416 of the Code and the TrgeRagulations thereunder for the first
and second plan years of a defined benefit plaa.adtuarial assumptions (interest rate and moyrtatity) used by the actuary under the
defined benefit plan shall be used to calculategtiesent value of accrued benefits from the deflyetefit plan.

(b) "Determination Date" means for any Year the ikarsary Date of the preceding Year, or in the cdgbe first Year of the Plan, the
Anniversary Date of that Year.

(c) "Required Aggregation Group" means (1) eacHifigd plan of an Employer in which at least oneyKemployee participates, and (2) any
other qualified plan of an Employer which enablgdam described in
(1) to meet the requirements of Sections 401 (aj(4)10 of the Code.

(d) "Permissive Aggregation Group" means the Remgl#kggregation Group plus any other qualified plarasntained by an Employer which,
when considered as a group with the Required Agdiey Group, would continue to satisfy the requiesis of Sections 401(a)(4) and 41(
the Code.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, acting by and tigtoits duly authorized officers, has caused tisated Plan to be executed as of
the day and year first above written.

THE RECTORSEAL CORPORATION
By
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Twelve Largest Investments--March 31, 1996

PALM HARBOR HOMES, INC. $71,086,000

Palm Harbor Homes, Dallas, Texas, is an integnatadufactured housing company, building, retailing einancing homes produced in 14
plants in Alabama, Arizona, Florida, North Caroli@hio, Oregon and Texas and sold in 34 statesiffirover 500 independent dealers and
44 company-owned or affiliated retail superstoRedm Harbor manufactures high-quality, energy &ffit; site-delivered homes designed to
meet the need for affordable housing, particularhong retirees and newly-formed families.

During the year ended March 31, 1996, Palm Harbponted earnings of $14,978,000 ($1.47 per sharegbsales of $417,214,000,
compared with earnings of $11,225,000 ($1.16 parejton net sales of $330,547,000 in the previeas.yThe March 29, 1996 closing
Nasdagq bid price of Palm Harbor's common stock$2&s25 per shar

At March 31, 1996, the $10,931,955 investment ilmRdarbor by Capital Southwest and its subsidiaagwalued at $71,086,000 ($17.68
share) consisting of 4,021,820 restricted shareswimon stock, representing a fully-diluted equitgrest of 37.0%.

SKYLAWN CORPORATION $45,000,000

Skylawn Corporation owns and operates cemeteriaasoleums and mortuaries. Skylawn's operationsf athich are in California, include
a mausoleum and an adjacent mortuary in Oaklandemeteries and mausoleums in San Mateo, Haywaoida®ento and Napa, the latter
three of which also have mortuaries at the cemestiéeg. All of these entities are well establishad have provided funeral services to their
respective communities for many years.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 1996 SkylawrpGation earned $4,462,000 on revenues of $220989in the previous year, Skylawn
earned $3,292,000 on revenues of $21,005,000.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest owned 100%kyfi&vn Corporation's common stock, which had a c6$4,510,400 and was valued
at $45,000,000.

ALAMO GROUP INC. $38,209,000

Alamo Group Inc. is a leading designer, manufactanel marketer of heavy-duty, tractor-mounted mgwand growth maintenance
equipment. Founded in 1969, Alamo Group operatandiufacturing facilities and serves agricultugalyernmental and commercial mark
in the U.S. and Europe.

For the year ended December 30,1995, Alamo repodesol idated earnings of $11,615,000 ($1.34 pared on net sales of $163,852,000,
compared with earnings of $9,166,000 ($1.20 peregtan net sales of $119,643,000 in the previoas.yehe March 29,1996 closing NYSE
market price of Alamo's common stock was $17.8%spare.

At March 31,1996, the $575,000 investment in AlamgdCapital Southwest and its subsidiary was vahtegB8,209,000, consisting of 2,660
000 restricted shares of common stock valued a0888000 ($14.30 per sihare) and warrants valu&d at,000, representing a fully-diluted
equity interest of 26.8% at an anticipated cos1g675,000.

THE RECTORSEAL CORPORATION $28,000,000

The RectorSeal Corporation, with plants in Houstod Mount Vernon, New York, manufactures speciglftgmical products including pipe
thread sealants, firestop sealants, plastic sob@ments and other formulations for plumbing amtigtrial applications. These products are
distributed through over 6,000 supply firms. ReStal's subsidiary, Jet-Lube, Inc., with plants aukton, England and Canada, produces
anti-seize compounds, specialty lubricants andrqiheducts used in industrial and oil field applioas. RectorSeal also owns a 20% equity
interest in The Whitmore Manufacturing Company (dieed subsequently).

During the fiscal year ended March 31,1996, Thet®t&eal Corporation reported consolidated earniri@s3,014,000 on revenues of
$29,290,000, compared with earnings of $2,423,008ewenues of $25,121,000 in the previous yeartdR8eal's earnings do not reflect its
20% equity in The Whitmore Manufacturing Company.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest owned 100% eétBrSeal's common stock having a cost of $52,600avalue of $28,000,000.
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PETSMART, INC. $11,857,737
PETSMART Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, is the nationadimg operator of superstores specializing in petlf pet supplies and pet services,
including full scale veterinary care. PETSMART @antly operates 283 superstores in 33 states.

For the year ended January 28,1996, PETSMART regarinet loss of $2,803,000 ($0.07 per share) bsates of $1,030,663,000, compared
with a net loss of $9,830,000 ($0.22 per share)airsales of $817,555,000 in the previous year.March 29,1996 closing Nasdaq bid price
of PETSMART's common stock was $36.25 per share.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest and its subsjdowned 327,110 unrestricted shares of PETsMA&mon stock, having a cost of
$2,878,733 and a market value of $11,857,737 ($36e2 share).

AMERICAN HOMESTAR CORPORATION $7,961,210

American Homestar Corporation, Webster, Texasdbuiletails and finances manufactured housing,ymiad homes from its three plants in
the Dallas-Fort Worth area and retailing its pradubrough 43 company-owned retail sales centatsvare than 100 independently-owned
retail centers in Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma, k@iria, Colorado, Arkansas and Kansas.

For the year ended May 31,1995, American Homesfaorted net income of $7,188,000 ($0.98 per slare)et sales of $187,653,000.
Unaudited earnings for the nine months ended Fep28 1996 were $6,423,000 ($0.83 per share) cosapaith $4,721,000 ($0.66 per
share) during the same period in the preceding yider March 29,1996 closing Nasdaq bid price of Aca& Homestar's common stock was
$19.875 per share.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest and its subsyjdowned 400,564 unrestricted shares of Americaméstar common stock, having a
cost of $3,405,824 and a market value of $7,961(810.875 per share), representing a fully-diliggdity interest of 4.3%.

ENCORE WIRE CORPORATION $6,599,000

Encore Wire Corporation, McKinney, Texas, manufeedia broad line of copper electrical wire and edfttluding non-metallic sheathed
cable, underground feeder cable and THHN cablesfidential, commercial and industrial constructiéncore's products are sold through
large-volume distributors and building materialsailers.

For the year ended December 31, 1995, Encore sxparhet loss of $545,000 ($0.08 per share) onaies of $151,308,000, compared with
net income of $6,670,000 ($0.98 per share) onalesof $122,698,000 in the previous year. The KM2&,1996 closing Nasdaq bid price of
Encore's common stock was $9.00 per share.

At March 31,1996, the $4,100,000 investment in 2,0Q0 shares of Encore's restricted common stod&dpjtal Southwest and its subsidii
was valued at $6,599,000 (an average of $5.88haee} representing a fully diluted equity interafs14.8%.

SDI Holding Corp. $6,000,000

SDI Holding Corp., Glasgow, Delaware, through itsolly-owned subisidiary, Sterling Diagnostic Imagijinc., manufactures and markets
on a worldwide basis, x-ray medical imaging filmtensifying screens, cassettes, film developmesiniteals and related equipment and
services. A subsidiary, Direct Radiography Compdeveloping a direct radiography system, schedoletio98 introduction, which will
capture, store and transmit conventional x-ray iesag a digital format.

In March 1996, Capital Southwest invested $6,000j8Ghe common stock of SDI Holding Corp., whialrghased the assets of the
Diagnostic Imaging busi ness from E.I. DuPont deners for approximately $396 million. The operaianquired by SDI recorded 1995
sales of $539 million.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest's $6,000,0@@stment in common stock of SDI Holding Corp. wakied at cost and represents a
fully-diluted equity interest of 12.0%.



THE WHITMORE MANUFACTURING COMPANY $5,728,000

The Whitmore Manufacturing Company, with plant®Riockwall, Texas and Cleveland, Ohio, manufactupesgislty lubricants for extreme-
pressure, lubrication of heavy equipment used ifasa mining and in other industries and producassit coatings for the automobile
industry. Whitmore's subsidiary, Hanson-Loran Conypdnc., Buena Park, California, produces floaighing compounds, supplies and
equipment for supermarkets.

During the fiscal year ended March 31,1996, Whien@ported a net loss of $611,000 on net sale¢&B29,000, compared with net income
of $471,000 on net sales of $17,861,000 in theipuswyear. The company is owned 80% by Capital iBeest and 20% by Capital
Southwest's subsidiary, The RectorSeal Corpordtieacribed on a previous page).

At March 31,1996, the direct investment in WhitmbyeCapital Southwest was valued at $5,728,000haida cost of $2,528,000, consisting
of $928,000 in 10% subordinated notes and $1,600/98ommon stock. Our Company's direct and indiegwity in Whitmore's loss for the
year ended March 31,1996 was $611,(

CHEROKEE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. $5,000,000

Cherokee Communications, Inc., Jacksonville, Teisagne of the largest private payphone compani¢ise United States, owning and
servicing approximately 11,700 payphones instahecbnvenience stores and other higiffic areas located primarily in Texas, New Mex
Montana and Utah.

For the year ended September 30,1995, Cherokegedpeet income of $2,220,000, including a non-réng gain of $651,000 on net sales
of $31,592,000, compared with net income of $603,00 net sales of $27,865,000 in the previous year.

At March 31,1996, the $2,400,000 investment in @¥nalative convertible preferred stock by Capitalithavest and its subsidiary was val
at $5,000,000 and represents a fully-diluted equiigrest of 21.0%.

Mail-Well, Inc. $4,136,000
Mail-Well, Inc., Englewood, Colorado, is a leadiagvelope manufacturer and printer in the UnitedeStand Canada, specializing in
customized envelopes and high-impact color printigil-Well operates 43 plants and numerous sdféses throughout North America.

For the year ended December 31, 1995, Mé&iH reported earnings of $10,373,000 ($1.36 pareshon net sales of $596,792,000. The M
29,1996 closing Nasdaq bid price of Mail-Well's coon stock was $7.75 per share.

At March 31,1996, the $2,889,010 investment in ME@ll by Capital Southwest was valued at $4,136,@00average of $5.96 per share)
consisting of 694,063 restricted shares of comntocks representing a fully-diluted equity intere$6.3%.

TELE -COMMUNICATIONS, INC. --TCI GROUP $3,330,000

Tele-Communications, Inc.--TCI Group, Englewood|dZado, is principally engaged in the constructiaequisition, ownership and
operation of cable television systems end the gioniof satellitedelivered video entertainment information and hamepping programmin
services to various video distribution media, pipatly cable television systems in 49 states.

For the year ended December 31,1995, Tele-Comntionsa Inc.--TCI Group reported a net loss of $008,000 ($0.16 per share) on
revenues of $5,384,000,000, compared with net ircon$99,000,000 on revenues of $4,269,000,000aptevious year. The March
29,1996 closing Nasdaq bid price of TeleCommunace; Inc.--TCl Group Series A common stock was $01.®er share.

At March 31,1996, Capital Southwest owned 180,0@@stricted shares of Series A common stock of-Calmmmunications, Inc.7Cl Groug.
having a cost of $68 and a market value of $3,38D(818.50 per share).
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Portfolio of Investments--March 31, 1996

Company Equity (a)
*ALAMO GROUP INC.(d) 26.8% 2,660,0
San Antonio, Texas (acquir
Heavy-duty, tractor-mounted Warrant
mowing and growth maintenance of comm
equipment for agricultural expirin

and governmental markets.

ALL COMPONENTS, INC.(d) 30.0% 14% sub

Addison, Texas (acquir
Distributor of memory and other Series
components to personal com- stock (
puter manufacturers, retailers 450,000
and value-added resellers. stock (

*AMERICAN HOMESTAR CORPORATION (d) 4.3% 400,564

Webster, Texas (acquir
Manufacturing, retailing and 3-28-96
financing of manufactured

housing sold n a seven-state

market area.

BALCO, INC.(d) 83.9% 14% sub

Wichita, Kansas 1997 to
Specialty architectural products 14% sub
used in the contruction and 1997 to
remodeling of commerical and convert
institutional buildings. common

(acquir

110,000

60,920

stock (

Warrant

of comm

expirin

CHEROKEE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. (d) 21.0% 240,000

Jacksonville, Texas ferred

Owns and services approximately 2,218,0
11,700 payphones. $1.08 p
*DATA RACE, INC. (d) 8.0% 475,950
San Antonio, Texas ired 10
Statistical multiplexers, custom Option
data/fax/voice modems and local common
and wide area network connectivity expirin
products.

* Publicly-owned company
** Unrestricted securities as defined in Note (b)

Investment (b) Cost Va

00 shares common stock $ 575,000
ed 4-1-73 and (7-18-78)

to purchase 62,500 shares

on stock at $16.00 per share,

g 2000 (acquired 11-25-91) -

ordinated debenture, due 1999

ed 9-16-94) 150,000 shares 600,000
A convertible preferred

acquired 9-16-94) 150,000
shares Series B preferred

acquired 9-16-94) 450,000

1,200,000 1

shares common stock
ed 8-31-93, 7-12-94 and
) 3,405,824 7

ordinated debentures, payable
2001 (acquired 8-13-91) 400,000
ordinated debenture, payable

2001, last maturing $250,000

ible into 250,000 shares of

stock at $1.00 per share

ed 6-1-91) 800,000
shares common stock and

shares Class B non-voting

acquired 10-25-83) 170,920
s to purchase 85,000 shares

on stock at $2.40 per share,

g 2001 (acquired 8-13-91) -

1,370,920 1

shares 6% cumulative pre-

stock, convertible into

00 shares of common stock at

er share (acquired 12-31-92) 2,400,000

shares common stock (acqu-

-7-92) 1,699,485 1
to purchase 35,507 shares of

stock at $.67 per share,

g 2000 (acquired 12-31-91) 71,015

1,770,500 1

$38



Company Equity (a)
DENNIS TOOL COMPANY (d) 46.1% 98,687
Houston, Texas ired 3-

Polycrystalline diamond compacts
(PDCs) used in oil field drill

bits and in mining and industrial
applications.

DYMETROL COMPANY, INC. (d) 33.8% 15% sub

Hockessin, Delaware quarter
Nylon strapping for packaging 5-27-93
applications and copolyester 19,912
elastomeric tape used in auto- voting
mobiles.

*ENCORE WIRE CORPORATION (d) 14.8% 1,122,0
McKinney, Texas quired

Electrical wire and cable for

residential and commerical use.

*FMC CORPORATION (d) (1% **6,430
Chicago, Illinois uired 6

Machinery and chemicals in

diversified product areas.

*FRONTIER CORPORATION (d) (1% **31,33

Rochester, New York uired 1
Diversified telecommunications
company.
LIL' THINGS, INC. (d) 7.3% 2,250,0
Arlington, Texas preferr
Retail chain of superstores 2,250,0
selling products for children at $1.0
from birth to six years. (acquir

666,666

preferr

746,268

$1.34p

617,410

preferr

617,410

$1.20p

Warrant

of comm

expirin
*MAIL-WELL, INC. 5.3% 694,063
Englewood, Colorado ired 2-

Customized envelopes and
high-impact color printing.
* Publicly-owned company

** Unrestricted securities as defined in Note (b)

Investment (b) Cost \%

shares common stock (acqu- $ 330,000
7-94)

ordinated notes, payable

ly 1998 to 1999 (acquired

) 774,379
shares common stock, non-
(acquired 5-27-93) 199,115

00 shares common stock (ac-
7-16-92, 3-15-94 and 4-28-94) 4,100,000

shares common stock (acq-
-6-86) 123,777

8 shares common stock (acq-
2-20-95) 78,346

00 shares Class A cumulative
ed stock, convertible into

00 shares of commmon stock
0 per share

ed 2-12-93 and 12-1-93)
shares Class B cumulative
ed stock, convertible into
shares of common stock at
er share (acquired 9-15-94) 1,000,000
shares Class C cumulative

ed stock, convertible into

shares of common stock at

er share (acquired 12-4-95) 740,894
s to purchase 58,842 shares

on stock at $.01 per share,

g 2000, (acquired 11-6-95) -

2,250,000

3,990,894

shares common stock (acqu-
18-94, 12-14-94, and 7-27-95) 2,889,010

alue (c)

$1 ,200,000

1,125,000

373,134



Company Equity (a)

*MYLAN LABORATORIES INC. (d) (1% **128,2
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (acquir
Proprietary and generic phar-

maceutical products.

PTS HOLDINGS, INC. 21.6% 200,000
Anaheim, California common
Power systems for military

and commercial applications.

*PALM HARBOR HOMES, INC. (d) 37.0% 4,021,8
Dallas, Texas uired 1

Integrated manufacturing, ret-

ailing and financing of man-

ufactured housing sold in

34 states.
*PETSMART, INC. (d) 1% **327,1
Phoenix, Arizona uired 6

Retail chain of superstores
selling pet foods, supplies
and services.

THE RECTORSEAL CORPORATION 100.0% 27,907

Houston, Texas ired 1-
Chemical specialty products for
industrial, construction and oil

field applications; owns 20% of
Whitmore Manufacturing.

SDI HOLDING CORP. 12.0% 60,000
Glasgow, Delaware ired 3-
Owns Sterling Diagnostic Imaging,

a manufacturer of x-ray medical

imaging film and direct radio-

graphy systems.

SKYLAWN CORPORATION 100.0% 1,449,0
Hayward, California ired 7-

Cemeteries, mausoleums and

mortuaries located in northern

California.
*SPRINT CORPORATION (d) (1% **36,00
Westwood, Kansas uired 6

Provider of long-distance and
local telephone service.

* Publicly-owned company

** Unrestricted securities as defined in Note (b)

Investment (b) Cost \%

86 shares common stock
ed 11-20-91) $ 400,000 $

shares Class B non-voting
stock (acquired 11-21-94) 2,000,000

20 shares common stock (acq-
-3-85, 3-31-88, and 7-31-95) 10,931,955 7

10 shares common stock (acq-
-1-95) 2,878,733 1

shares common stock (acqu-
5-73 and 3-31-73) 52,600 2

shares common stock (acqu-
26-96) 6,000,000

26 shares common stock (acqu-
16-69) 4,510,400 4

0 shares common stock (acg-
-20-84) 503,645

alue (c)



Company Equity (a)

*TECNOL MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC. (1% **183,7
Fort Worth, Texas uired 2

Disposable medical products

marketed to health-care

facilities.

*TELE-COMMUNICATIONS, INC.-TCI Group (1% **180,0
Englewood, Colorado stock (

Operation of the nation's largest

cable television system.

*TELE-COMMUNICATIONS, INC.-Liberty (1% **45,00
Media Group stock (

Englewood, Colorado

Production and distribution of

cable television programming

services.
TEXAS SHREDDER, INC. (d) 45.7% 14% sub
San Antonio, Texas able 19
Design and manufacture of heavy- 3,000 s
duty shredder systems for stock (
recycling steel and other materials 750 sha
from junk automobiles. convert
common
(acquir

*TRITON ENERGY CORPORATION (d) 1% **6,022
Dallas, Texas ired 12

Oil and gas exploration

and development.

VARIX CORPORATION (d) 100.0% 12% pro
Richardson, Texas uired 1
Formerly developed software 1,514,5
for computer-aided design of convert
electronic circuits. stock a

ired 6-

37 shar

6-2-86,

WESTMARC COMMUNICATIONS, INC. - 21 shar
Denver, Colorado (acquir

Cable television systems and

microwave relay systems.

* Publicly-owned company
** Unrestricted securities as defined in Note (b)

Investment (b) Cost

64 shares common stock (acq-
-7-92 and 5-11-94) $2,396,926

00 shares Series A common
acquired 6-3-69) 68

0 shares Series A common
acquired 8-4-95) -

ordinated debentures, pay-
97 to 1999 (acquired 3-6-91) 1,125,000
hares Series A preferred

acquired 3-6-91) 300,000

res Series B preferred stock,
ible into 7,500 shares of

stock at $10.00 per share

ed 3-6-91) 75,000

1,500,000

shares common stock (acqu-
-15-86) 144,167

missory notes due 1997 (acq-
2-5-86,3-21-88 and 1-31-90) 566,486
66 shares preferred stock,

ible into 3 shres of common

t $171,667 per share (acqu-

1-84 and 3-21-88) 515,000

es common stock (acquired

3-21-88 and 1-31-90) 100,000

1,181,486

es Series C preferred stock
ed 1-3-90) -

Value (c)

1,175,625

1,125,000

300,000

1,250,000

300,000



Company Equity (a) Investment (b) Cost \% alue (c)

THE WHITMORE MANUFACTURING 80.0% 10% sub ordinated note payable 1997
COMPANY (d) to 1998 (acquired 8-31-79) $ 928,000 $ 928,000
Rockwall, Texas 80 shar es common stock (acquired
Specialized mining and 8-31-79 ) 1,600,000 4,800,000
industrial lubricants; e e
automotive transit coatings; 2,528,000 5,728,000
floor-finishing compounds and
equipment.
MISCELLANEOUS 40.0% Amfibe, Inc. (d)-2,000 shares Class

B non-v oting common stock (acg-

uired 6 -15-94) 200,000 200,000

98.8% Humac C ompany-1,041,000 shares
common stock (acquired 1-31-75 and
12-31-7 5) - 150,000
(1% *360 Co mmunications Company

(d)-* *12,000 shares common stock

(acquir ed 3-7-96) 108,355 288,000
TOTAL INVESTMENTS OF CAPITAL SOUTHWEST CORPORATION $41,172,565 $17 8,183,590
TOTAL INVESTMENTS OF CAPITAL SOUTHWEST VENTURE CORPRATION 17,371,535 7 8,746,871
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $58,544,100 $25

* Publicly-owned company ** Unrestricted securit@s defined in Note (b)
Notes to Portfolio of Investments

(a) The percentages in the "Equity" column exptlegotential equity interests held by the Compamy Capital Southwest Venture
Corporation ("CSVC") in each issuer. Each percemtagresents the amount of the issuer's commok gtecCompany and CSVC own or
can acquire as a percentage of the issuer's tatstamding common shares, plus shares reserved fooutstanding warrants, convertible
securities and employee stock options. The symliéb” indicates that the Company and CSVC hold amt@! equity interest of less than
one percent.

(b) Unrestricted securities (indicated by *) areely marketable securities having readily availabégket quotations. All other securities are
restricted securities which are subject to one oremestrictions on resale and are not freely ntatite. At March 31, 1996, restricted
securities represented approximately 87% of theevaf the consolidated investment portfolio (78%C&VC's portfolio).

(c) Under the valuation policy of the Company ar@MC, unrestricted securities are valued at themgdpsale price for listed securities and at
the closing bid price for over-the-counter secesitbn the valuation date. Restricted securitiefuding securities of publicly-owned
companies which are subject to restrictions onleesae valued at fair value as determined by tbaré of Directors. Fair value is considered
to be the amount which the Company or CSVC mayoready expect to receive for portfolio securitiesuch securities were sold on the
valuation date. Valuations as of any particulaedhbwever, are not necessarily indicative of an®wmich may ultimately be realized as a
result of future sales or other dispositions olusiies.

Among the factors considered by the Board of Daeccin determining the fair value of restrictedigites are the financial condition and
operating results of the issuer, the long-term mitdeof the business of the issuer, the marketfat recent sales prices of the issuer's
securities, the values of similar securities issoedompanies in similar businesses, the propodfdhe issuer's securities owned by the
Company and CSVC, the nature and duration of resaleictions and the nature of any rights enabiirgCompany or CSVC to require the
issuer to register restricted securities underiepiplle securities laws. In determining the fairneabf restricted securities, the Board of
Directors considers the inherent value of such régesiwithout regard to the restrictive featurel adjusts for any diminution in value
resulting from restrictions on resale.
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Notes to Portfolio of Investments

(d)Investments of CSVC,excluding the foliowmg wh
Company and listed with those owned by CSVC:

(continued)

ich are owned directly by the

$ 0 171,000
1,658,000 2,470,244
nture 116,000 116,000
55,000 55,000

Company Security Cost Value
Alamo Group, Inc. Warrant

American Homestar Corp. 124,289 common shares

Balco, Inc. 14% subordinated debe

Balco, Inc. 55,000 common shares

Balco, Inc. Warrant

Cherokee Communications, Inc 110,000 preferred sha
Data Race, Inc 176,105 common shares
Data Race, Inc Option

Dennis Tool Company 4,199 common shares
Dymetrol Company, Inc. 15% subordinated note
Dymetrol Company, Inc. 1,991 common shares
Encore Wire Corporation 300,000 common shares

0 0
res 1,100,000 2,291,667
480,116 374,000
71,015 52,000
30,000 51,058
77,448 77,448
19,911 19,911
3,500,000 2,160,000

LiL'Things, Inc. 1,125,000 CI A

preferred shares 1,125,000 562,500
LiL'Things, Inc. 333,333 CI B

preferred shares 500,000 186,567
LiL'Things, Inc. 308,705 CI C

preferred shares 370,447 154,353
LiL' Things, Inc. Warrant 0 14,416

3,642,303 common shar es 10,820,624 64,378,000
171,005 common shares 1,500,000 6,198,931
14% subordinated debe nture 225,000 225,000
750 preferred shares 75,000 310,000

80 common shares 1,600,000 4,800,000

Palm Harbor Homes, Inc
PETSMART Inc.

Texas Shredder, Inc.
Texas Shredder, Inc.
The Whitmore Mfg. Co.

(e) Agreements between certain issuers and the @oynr CSVC provide that the issuers will bear sarisally all costs in connection with
the disposition of common stocks, including thosstg involved in registration under the Securifiesof 1933 but excluding underwriting
discounts and commissions. These agreements, wbigr common stocks owned at March 31, 1996 andramstocks which may be
acquired thereafter through exercise of warrantscamversion of debentures and preferred stockdy ap restricted securities of all issuers
in the investment portfolio of the Company and CSA#Cept securities of the following issuers, whach not obligated to bear registration
costs: Humac Company, Skylawn Corporation and Thimére Manufacturing Company.

(f) The descriptions of the companies and ownerpbigentages shown in the portfolio of investmerdse obtained from published reports
and other sources believed to be reliable, arelsomtal and are not covered by the report of irddpnt auditors. Acquisition dates
indicated are the dates specific securities wegeieed. Certain securities were received in exchdbgor upon conversion or exercise of
other securities previously acquired.

Portfolio Changes During the Year

New Investments and Additions to Previous Investmes

Amount
American Homestar Corporation $ 1,428,000
Frontier Corporation 78,346
LiL' Things, Inc 1,023,338
Mail-Well, Inc 479,072
Palm Harbor Homes, Inc 10,398,060
6,000,000



Dispositions

CrossTies Software Company $1,100,000
General Communication, Inc (@)
Intelligent Electronics, Inc 1,217,667
MESC Holdings, Inc 2,500,000
PETSMART, Inc 121,266

Repayments Received . .. .............

13

Amount
Received

105,098
478,375
20,454,600
432,100



[GRAPHIC OMITTED]
[GRAPHIC OMITTED]

Capital Southwest Corporation and Subsidiary Cadatdd Statements of Financial Condition

March 31

Assets

Investments at market or fair
value (Notes 1 and 2)
Companies more than 25% owned
(Cost: 1996 - $21,480,361,
1995 - $15,147,834) ....oevvveenen. $191,043 ,920 $143,715,000
Companies 5% to 25% owned
(Cost: 1996 - $18,750,404,
1995 - $17,030,438) ....covvvereennnes 19,633 ,672 31,459,238
Companies less than 5% owned
(Cost: 1996 - $18,313,335,
1995 - $17,551,303) ..ccoevuvvireannnes 46,252 ,869 27,586,335
Total investments
(Cost: 1996 - $58,544,100,

1995 - $49,729,575) ..cceviivieeenns 256,930 ,461 202,760,573
Cash and cash equivalents ................ 67,045 ,185 8,372,976
Receivables ..........cccccovivennnns 285 ,002 243,633
Other assets (Note 8) .........c.ccueeee 2,711 ,802 2,434,231
Totals $326,972 ,450 $213,811,413

March 31
1996 1995

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Note payable to bank (Note 4) $ 50,00 0,000 $ -
Accrued interest and other

liabilities (Note 8) . . 1,66 9,839 1,490,506
Income taxes payable 6,05 0,730 -
Deferred income taxes (Note 3) 69,20 4,128 53,951,003
Subordinated debentures (Note 5) 11,00 0,000 11,000,000
Total liabilities 137,92 4,697 66,441,509

Shareholders' equity

(Notes 3 and 6)

Common stock, $1 par value: authorized,
5,000,000 shares; issued,

4,204,416 shares at March 31, 1996,
and 4,172,416 shares at

March 31,1995............ 4,20 4,416 4,172,416

Additional capital . . ......... 4,81 3,121 4,270,371

Undistributed net investment income ... 4,49 0,374 3,889,288

Undistributed net realized gain on

investments . .............. 53,30 7,782 42,287,133
Unrealized appreciation of investments--

net of deferred income taxes . . . .. .. 129,26 5,362 99,783,998
Treasury stock--at cost

(437,365 shares). ............. (7,03 3,302) (7,033,302)

Net assets at market or fair value,

equivalent to $50.18 per share on the

3,767,051 shares outstanding at

March 31,1996, and $39.46 per share

on the 3,735,051 shares out standing

at March 31,1995 189,04 7,753 147,369,904

Totals ...cccovviiiiiiiii, $326,97 2,450 $213,811,413

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer



Capital Southwest Corporation and Subsidiary Cadatdd Statements of Operations

Ye ars Ended March 31
1996 1995 1994

Investment income (Note 9):
Interest $ 2,018,308 $ 1,952,557 $ 2,096,346
Dividends 3,597,004 2,629,384 2,909,389
Management and directors' fees 561,950 523,750 498,000

6,177,262 5,105,691 5,503,735
Operating expenses:
Interest 1,700,003 1,394,266 1,444,609
Salaries 1,112,640 913,555 857,132
Net pension expense (benefit)
(Note 8) (208,701) (241,430) (239,532)
Other operating expenses 642,955 541,243 483,636

3,246,897 2,607,634 2,545,845
Income before income taxes 2,930,365 2,498,057 2,957,890
Income tax expense(Note3) 75,448 51,404 88,293
Net investment income $ 2,854,917 $ 2,446,653 $ 2,869,597
Proceeds from disposition
of investments $21,470,173 $1,702,276 $ 333,571
Cost of investments sold (Notel) 4,938,933 1,483,194 1,004,592
Realized gain (loss) on
investments before
income taxes (Note 9) 16,531,240 219,082 (671,021)
Income tax expense (benefit) 5,357,215 76,679 (196,418)
Net realized gain(loss)
on investments 11,174,025 142,403 (474,603)

Increase in unrealized appreciation

of investments before income taxes

and distributions 54,619,668 20,898,731 18,979,514
Increase in deferred income taxes

on appreciation of investments

(Note 3) 15,874,000 7,315,000 7,820,000
Net increase in unrealized

appreciation of investments

before distributions 38,745,668 13,583,731 11,159,514
Net realized and unrealized gain

on investments before distributions $49,919,693 $ 13,726,134 $ 10,684,911

Increase in net assets from
operations before distributions  $52,774,610 $ 16,172,787 $ 13,554,508

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Operations

Net investment income

.................. $ 2,854,917
Net realized gain (loss) on investments 11,174,025
Net increase in unrealized appreciation

of investments before distributions .. 38,745,668

Increase in net assets from

operations before distributions ...... 52,774,610

Distributions from:
Undistributed net investment income.... (2,253,831
Undistributed net realized gain on

investments

.......................... (153,376
Unrealized appreciation of investments. (9,264,304

Capital share transactions
Exercise of employee stock options

..... 574,750
Increase in net assets 41,667,849
Net assets, beginning of year........... 147,369,904

Capital Southwest Corporation and Subsidiary Cadatdd Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31

1995 1994

$2,446,653 $ 2,869,597
142,403  (474,603)

13,583,731 11,159,514

16,172,787 13,554,508

) (2,241,031) (2,227,631)

) -
) -

384,750 272,000

14,316,506 11,598,877

133,053,398 121,454,521

$147,369,904 $133,053,398

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer



Capital Southwest Corporation and Subsidiary Cadatdd Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ende d March 31

1996 199 5 1994
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets from operations before distr ibutions.........ccc........ $52,774,610 $16,172 , 787 $13,554,508
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets fro m operations before
distributions to net cash provided by operating ac tivities:
Depreciation and amortization..................... 33,439 42 ,623 40,392
Net pension benefit..........cccceeviieennn.n. ... (208,701) (241 ,430)  (239,532)
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments... .. (49,919,693) (13,793 ,624) (10,764,777)
(Increase) decrease in receivables................ (41,369) 63 ,301 (15,270)
(Increase) decrease in other assets 28,950 (18 ,354) (54,849)
Increase in accrued interest and other liabilities 48,075 7 ,092 23,995
Deferred income taxes...........cccceeeeveennen, 72,640 84 ,500 89,460
Net cash provided by operating activities.......... 2,787,951 2,316 ,895 2,633,927
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposition of investments........... 21,470,173 1,611 ,976 333,571
Purchases of securities.............cccccevvveee. ... (19,406,816) (9,556 ,876) (10,679,997)
Maturities of securities............ccccceevvvvees 5,515,824 574 ,625 1,635,500
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities... 7,579,181 (7,370 ,275) (8,710,926)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in note payable to bank....... . L 50,000,000 (75,000 ,000) 75,000,000
Repayment of subordinated debentures............... - (4,000 ,000) -
Distributions from undistributed net investment inc ... (2,253,831) (2,241 ,031) (2,227,631)
Distributions from undistributed net realized gain (15,842) - -
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options... 574,750 384 , 750 272,000
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities .. 48,305,077 (80,856 ,281) 73,044,369
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent Sttt 58,672,209 (85,909 ,661) 66,967,370
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .... 8,372,976 94,282 ,637 27,315,267
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .......... $ 67,045,185 $8,372 976 $94,282,637
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
([0 CCTETS) R $ 1,653,277 $1,419 ,883  $1,410,800
Income taxes. ..$ 483 $ 15 ,049 51,000

Supplemental disclosure of investing and financotyities:
On July 31,1995, Capital Southwest Corporatiorrithigted to its shareholders 752,147 shares of comstuck of Palm Harbor Homes, Inc.,
which had a cost of $137,534 and a fair marketevafu$12.50 pershare, or $9,401,838.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer



Capital Southwest Venture Corporation

(wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Southwest Cagiimn)

Statement of Financial Condition

March 31,1996

Assets

Investments at market or fair value (Notes 1 and 2)
Companies more than 25% owned (Cost--$4,295,737)
Companies 5% to 25% owned (Cost--$3,814,816)
Companies less than 5% owned (Cost--$9,260,982)

Total investments (Cost--$17,371,535)
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest and dividends receivable
Other assets

Total

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Accrued interest and other liabilities
Deferred income taxes (Note 3)
Subordinated debentures (Note 5)

Total liabilities

Shareholder's equity (Notes 3 and 5)
Common stock, $1 par value: authorized,
5,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding,
1,000,000 shares
Additional capital
Undistributed net investment income
Accumulated net realized loss on investments
Unrealized appreciation of investments-
net of deferred income taxes

Shareholder's equity

Total

$48,322,862
5,993,836
24,430,173
78,746,871
9,975,795
103,282
61,750

$ 340,218
21,116,000
11,000,000

1,000,000
15,606,949
731,662
(816,467)

39,909,336

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer



Capital Southwest Venture Corp
(wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Sout

Statement of Operation
Year Ended March 31,199

Investment income:
INterest.......veeiiiieeniieiieeeens
Dividends...........ccoccvvvirerrenenenn.

Operating expenses (Note 1):
Interest.........ccocovvvvevennenennn,
Management fee .
Miscellaneous ...........cccceeeeiuneen.

Net investment income (Note 3)..........cccceueee

Proceeds from disposition of investments ..........
Cost of investments sold (Note 1) .................

Realized loss on investments before income taxes...
Income tax benefit .........cccvvveieeieinn.

Net realized loss on investments ..................

Net increase in unrealized appreciation of investme
distribution (net of increase in deferred income t
$1,821,000) (NOtE 3) ..cvveveereeiieieeens

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments....

Increase in shareholder's equity from operations...

Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

Net investment income ...........cocccueeeeennnen.
Net realized gain (loss) on investments............
Net increase in unrealized appreciation of investme

Increase in shareholder's equity from operations be

Capital contribution by Capital Southwest Corporati (o] IEUUUT

Distributions to Capital Southwest Corporation from
Undistributed net investment income .............
Accumulated net realized loss on investments.....
Unrealized appreciation of investments ..........

Increase in shareholder'sequity ...................
Shareholder's equity, beginning of year ...........

Shareholder's equity, end of year .................

oration
hwest Corporation)

S

6

................ $1,465,974

................ 1,346,890
2,812,864

1,221,267

................ (789,167)
................ (236,927)

axes of

Years Ended March
1996

$1,508,704 $ 7
(552,240)

nts before distribution ..... 12,662,525 54

...... 13,618,989 6,2

2,500,000

(1,089,251) (7
(137,765)
(9,279,873)
5,612,100 5,4
50,819,380 45,3

$56,431,480 $50,8

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



Capital Southwest Venture Corporation
(wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital Southwest Cagiimn)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 1996

Cash flows from operating activities

Increase in shareholder's equity from operations

before distributon$ .. ............ ... $ 13,618,989
Adjustments to reconcile increase in shareholder's

equity from operations before distribution to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments ~ ........ (12,110,285)
Decrease in interest and dividends receivable. ... ... 77,982
Decrease in otherassets. . .......... ... ... 20,041
Increase in accrued interest and other liabilit ies...... 22,698
Net cash provided by operating activities..... ..., 1,629,425
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposition of investments. . ... ~ _....... 432,100
Purchases of securities. . . ........... ..., (667,682)
Maturities of securities. . ........... ..., 5,244,037
Net cash provided by investing activities. . ... ..., 5,008,455
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend to Capital Southwest Corporation..... .. ...... (1,089,251)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. .... ..., 5,548,629
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear... ..., 4,427,166
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear...... ... ..., $ 9,975,795

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest. ... ... oo $ 959,251
Incometaxes. . ... $ 155

Supplemental disclosure of investing and finanaotivities:
On July 31,1995, Capital Southwest Venture Corpamadistributed to Capital Southwest CorporatioB,431 shares of common stock of
Palm Harbor Homes. Inc., which had a cost of $ 2685 and a fair market value of $ 12.50 per shar§9¢117,638.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Capital Southwest Corporation (the"Company") isiaihess development company subject to regulandienthe Investment Company Act
of 1940. Capital Southwest Venture Corporation {/C9), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the CompanyaiEederal licensee under the Small
Business Investment Act of 1958. The following summary of significant accounting policies follavi@ thr preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and CSVC:

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION. The consolidated ficéal statements, which include the accounts ofdbmpany and CSVC, have
been prepared on the value method of accountiagdordance with generally accepted accounting ipleefor investment companies. All
significant intercompany accounts and transacti@we been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. All temporary cash inviasents having a maturity of three months or lesewpurchased are
considered to be cash equivalents.

PORTFOLIO SECURITY VALUATIONS. Investments are st@iat market or fair value determined by the BadrDirectors as described in
the Notes to Portfolio of Investments and Note @BWweThe average cost method is used in determiodirsg of investments sold.

OPERATING EXPENSES. Expenses directly related éodtitivities of the Company or CSVC have been athdirectly as appropriate.
General operating expenses of the Company and G8¥@llocated between the companies based upaagpective fair values of the
portfolios of investments. Such allocation to CSi¢@ecorded in its statement of operations as aag@ment fee.

2. Valuation of Investments

The consolidated financial statements of the Companof March 31, 1996 and 1995 include secunitidsed at $223,234,086 (87% of the
value of the consolidated investment portfolio) i&7,791,413 (93% of the value of the consolidatgdstment portfolio), respectively,
whose values have been determined by the Boardrettrs in the absence of readily ascertainablketaalues. The Financial statements
of Capital Southwest Venture Corporation as of Ma&t, 1996 include $61,441,166 (78% of the valugsahvestment portfolio) of such
securities. Because of the inherent uncertaintyabfation, these values may differ significantlgrfr the values that would have been usec
a ready market for the securities existed, andliffierences could be material.

3. Income Taxes

Effective April 1,1993, the Company and CSVC addyites provisions of the Financial Accounting StaddaBoard's Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No0.109, "Accounting for Incofiaxes". There was no cumulative effect of the glean the method of accounting for
income taxes as a result of adopting Statement 109.

For the tax years ended December 31, 1995, 1994281 the Company and CSVC qualified to be taxerkgulated investment companies
("RICs") under applicable provisions of the IntdrRavenue Code. As RICs, the Company and CSVC disstbute at least 90% of their
taxable net investment income (investment compaxgktie income) and may either distribute or retlad@ir taxable net realized gain on
investments (capital gains). Both the Company a8 C intend to meet the applicable qualificationgéataxed as RICs in future years;
however, either company's ability to meet certairtfplio diversification requirements of RICs intfue years may not be controllable by s
company.

No provision was made for Federal income taxeserirtvestment company taxable income of the CompadyCSVC for the 1996, 19!

and 1994 fiscal years. Such income was distribtdeshareholders in the form of cash dividends fbicw the Company and CSVC receive a
tax deduction. With respect to net investment inepthe tax provision for each of the three yeadedrMarch 31, 1996 includes a deferred
tax provision related to the net pension benefit.

With respect to the net increase in unrealizedegpation of investments before distributions of @@mpany and CSVC during fiscal

1996,the expected increase in deferred income taxeppreciation of investments at the Federali&at rate of 35% differs from the
amounts reported in the financial statements ddlegalistribution of appreciated securities withassociated tax liability. With respect to the
net increase in unrealized appreciation of inveatsef the Company during fiscal 1994, the expegtetkase in deferred income taxes on
appreciation of investments at the Federal stajuttte of 35% differs from the amounts reportethimfinancial statements due to an increase
in deferred income taxes of $1,140,000 arising ftbenincrease in the Federal statutory tax rate f8d% to 35% during the year.

The Company and CSVC may not qualify or elect téaxed as RICs in future years. Therefore, conatdidi deferred Federal income taxe
$69,121,000 and

$53,247,000 have been provided on net unrealizptbagtion of investments of $198,386,361 and $1H3998 at March 31,1996 and 1995,
respectively. For CSVC, deferred Federal incomegax{ $21,466,000 have been provided on net ureghfippreciation of investments of
$61,375,336 at March 31,1996. Such appreciatimotisncluded in taxable income until realized. Dedd income taxes on net unreali:



appreciation of investments have been provideleattten currently effective maximum Federal corfiotax rate on capital gains of 35% at
March 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

4. Notes Payable to Bank

The note payable to bank at March 31, 1996 is @eeured note with interest payable at 6.24%. The was paid in full on April 1,1996.
The Company also has an unsecured $15,000,000/megdihe of credit, all of which was availableMarch 31, 1996. The revolving line of
credit bears interest at the bank's base rate36%s, and matures on July 31,1997.

5. Subordinated Debentures

CSVC's subordinated debentures, payable to otinerg@aranteed by the Small Business AdministrgtfeBA"), are as follows:

March 31
1996 1995
8.750%, due in 1996. . ........ $ 6,000,0 00 $ 6,000,000
8.000%, due in 2002.......... 5,000,0 00 5,000,000
TOTAL. ...........ov. .. $11,000,0 00 $11,000,000

SBA regulations prohibit any loans or advances By C to the Company and permit dividend paymentg with the prior approval of the
SBA.

6. Employee Stock Option Plan

Under the 1984 Incentive Stock Option Plan, optimngurchase 90,000 shares at prices ranging f28r2% to $39.1875 per share (the
adjusted market prices at the time of grant) wertstanding at March 31, 1996. Options on 37,02%eshaere exercisable at March 31, 1996.
During the year ended March 31, 1996, options 8030 shares were exercised. Outstanding optigpisee000 through 2003. The 1984
Incentive Stock Option Plan expired in 1994 andptions have been authorized or granted sincedtitat

At March 31, 1996 and 1995, the dilution of netedsger share arising from options outstandingeasnaterial.
7. Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Company and one of its wholly-owned subsidssigonsor a qualified employee stock ownership BSOP") in which certain
employees participate. Contributions to the plahictv are invested in Company stock, are made alifeetion of the Company's Board of
Directors. A participant's interest in contributioto the ESOP fully vests after five years of actervice. During the three years ended March
31, the Company made contributions to the ESOFchvhviere charged against net investment income7@f381 in 1996, $19,338 in 1995

and $13,844 in 1994.

8. Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a defined benefit pensionvpfdch covers substantially all of its employeed amployees of certain of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. The following information abthé plan only represents amounts and informatitated to the Company's participation
in the plan and is presented as though the Comgamysored a single-employer plan. Benefits aredbase/ears of service and an average of
the highest five consecutive years of compensatioimg the last ten years of employment. The fuggtalicy of the plan is to contribute
annual amounts that are currently deductible foréporting purposes. No contribution was madééoan during the three years ended
March 31,1996



Service cost--benefits earned

during the year. ... ... ... $ 42,184
Interest cost on projected benefit
obligation............ 165,906

Actual return on assets . . . . .. (1,421,745)
Net amortization and deferral. . . 873,696
Net pension expense (benefit) from

qualified plan. . ........ $ (339,959)

Components of net pension benefit related to ttadifipd plan include the following:

Years Ended March 31

1995 1994

$ 36,661 $ 35,559

148,318 154,556
(94,881)  (411,876)
(469,483)  (133,130)

$(379,385) $ (354,891)
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The following table sets forth the plan's fundeaiisd and amounts recognized in the Company's ddatad statements of financial conditi

March 31

1996 1995
Actuarial present value of benefit
obligations: Accumulated benefit obligation,
including vested benefits of $2,002,992 in
1996 and $1,813,6731in 1995......... $(2, 056,275) $(1,861,920)
Projected benefit obligation for service
renderedtodate. . ............ $(2, 289,114) $(2,047,431)
Plan assets at fair value*. . ... .. .. 6, 927,656 5,574,997

Excess of plan assets over the projected

benefit obligation. . . ......... 4, 638,542 3,527,566
Unrecognized net gain from past experience

different from that assumed and effects of

changes in assumptions . . .. ...... (1, 418,507) (570,380)
Prior service costs not yet recognized. . . (42,998) (46,277)
Unrecognized net assets being amortized

overl9years............... ( 664,463) (738,294)

Prepaid pension cost included in
otherassets. .............. $2, 512,574  $2,172,615

*Primarily equities and bonds including approxintat29,200 shares of common stock of the Company.

The weighted-average discount rate and rate ogéass in future compensation levels used in detémmihe actuarial present value of the
projected benefit obligation were 7.75% and 5.268pectively, at March 31, 1996, 8.0% and 5.5%peetvely, at March 31, 1995 and 7.
and 5.0%, respectively, at March 31, 1994. The etguelong-term rate of return used to project estéd earnings on plan assets was 8.5%
for the years ended March 31, 1996, 1995 and 1Bi®d calculations also assume retirement at agthé5ormal retirement age.

The Company also sponsors an unfunded Retiremestb&on Plan, which is a nonqualified plan thatvides for the payment, upon
retirement,of the difference between the maximumuahpayment permissible under the qualified retgat plan pursuant to Federal
limitations and the amount which would otherwisgdnbeen payable under the qualified plan.

The following table sets forth the status of thenphnd the amounts recognized in the Company'stdated statements of financial
condition:

March 31

199 6 1995
Projected benefit obligation. . . . . $(1,465, 570) $(1,484,811)
Unrecognized net loss from past
experience different from that
assumed and effects of changes
in assumptions. .. ......... 91, 477 222,143
Unrecognized net obligation. . . . .. 99, 155 118,988
Accrued pension cost included
in other liabilities. . .. ... .. $(1,274, 938) $(1,143,680)

The expenses recognized during the years endechN4rc1996, 1995 and 1994 of $131,258, $137,95%4d8,359, respectively, are offset
against the net pension benefit from the qualifiksch.
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9. Sources of Income

Income was derived from the following sources:

Investment Income

Realized Gain

------------------ (Loss) on
Years Ended Investments
March 31 Other Before Income
1996 Interest  Dividends Income Taxes
Companies more than
25%owned $ 755,146 $3,101,219 $545,200 $ -
Companies 5% to 25%
owned 2,730 - 16,750 17,954,600
Companies less than
5% owned 568,915 495,785 - (1,423,360)
Other sources,
including temporary
investments 691,517 - - -
$2,018,308 $3,597,004 $561,950  $16,531,240
1995
Companies more than
25% owned $ 661,252 $2,269,312 $501,500 $ -
Companies 5% to 25%
owned 2,083 - 22,250 774,943
Companies less than
5% owned 618,073 360,072 - (408,506)
Other sources,
including temporary
investments 671,149 - - (147,355)
$1,952,557 $2,629,384 $523,750 $ 219,082
1994
Companies more than
25% owned $ 750,541 $2,411,290 $493,500 $ -
Companies 5% to 25%
owned 526 - 4,500 (815,964)
Companies less than
5% owmed 566,208 498,099 - 144,943
Other sources,
including temporary
investments 779,071 - - -
$2,096,346 $2,909,389 $498,000 $(671,021)

10. Summarized Financial Information of UnconsdkdbSubsidiaries

The Company has three significant wholly-owned &liages--The RectorSeal Corporation, The Whitmidi@nufacturing Company and
Skylawn Corporation--which are neither investmespanies nor business development companies. Aoglydthe accounts of such
subsidiaries are not included with those of the Gany. Summarized combined financial informationhef three subsidiaries is as follows:

(all figures in thousands)

M arch 31
1996 1995

Condensed Balance Sheet Data

Assets

Cash and temporary investments $11,444 $14,638

Receivables 20,517 18,748

Inventories 30,907 25,150

Property, plant and equipment 15,910 14,745

Other assets 12,713 11,953
Totals $91,491 $85,234



Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Long-term debt $2,092 $ 2,505
Other liabilities 10,533 9,427
Shareholder's equity 78,866 73,302

Totals $91,491 $85,234
Condensed Statements of Income 1996 1995 1994
Revenues $69,058 $63,987  $59,198
Costs and operating expenses $60,050 $56,373  $50,812
Net income $ 6,865 $6,186 $6,664

11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases office space under an opellatisg which requires base annual rentals of $42#00gh February 1998 and provides
one five-year renewal option subject to certairtakescalations. For the three years ended Marctogdl rental expense charged to
investment income was $43,449 in 1996, $42,7508bland $42,275 in 199



Selected Per Share Data and Ratios

Years Ended March 31

1996 1995 1994 1993 1992

Investment iNCOMEe........cccocvevververeennen. $ 1.64 $1.37 $1.48 $1.34 $1.35
Operating EXPENSES.......ccocuvvieeeniiieeeaannns (.141) (.32) (.30) (.37) (.31)

Interest expense...... (.45) (.37) (.39) (.37) (.39)
INnCOmMe taxes........ceeevvvvevcvviiiiiiieeeenn. (.02) (.01) (.02) (.01) -
Net investment income ..........cc.occeeeeenns .76 .67 .77 59 .65
Distributions from undistributed net

investment income...........c.ccccveveeeeenn.. (.60) (.60) (.60) (.60) (.60)
Net realized gain(loss) on investments........... 297 .04 (.13) 1.39 3.93
Distributions from undistributed net

realized gain on investments.................. (.04) - - - -

Net increase (decrease) in unrealized
appreciation of investments before

distributions.........ccccceeviiiiiiennnen. 10.28 3.64 3.00 2.32 (1.25)
Distributions from unrealized appreciation
of investments.........ccccevieieiiiinnenn. (2.46) - - - -
Exercise of employee stock options*.............. (.19) (.10) (.22) (.22) (.08)
Increase in net asset value...................... 10.72 3.65 2.82 3.48 2.65
Net asset value:
Beginning of year.............cceuee. 39.46 35.81 32.99 29.51 26.86
End of year .......cccoeveeviiinennnn. $ 50.18 $39.46 $35.81 $32.99 $29.51

Ratio of operating expenses to average

Net asSetS.......ooovvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9% 9% 9% 1.2% 1.1%
Ratio of net investment income to average

Net aSSetS.....covveveeeeeieiiiiiiiiieees 1.7% 18% 23% 1.9% 2.3%
Portfolio turnover rate..............cccoveee 45% 1.3% 1.3% 52% 6.5%

Shares outstanding at end of period
(000s omitted)........ccoeevrrrrieernennnns 3,767 3,735 3,715 3,681 3,644

* Net decrease is due to exercise of employee siptikns at less than beginning of period net asset.



Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Capital Southwest Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying: (a) consolidsti#geéments of financial condition of Capital Soutistv\Corporation and subsidiary as of
March 31, 1996 and 1995, the portfolio of investteeas of March 31, 1996, the related consolidat&igments of operations, changes in net
assets and cash flows for each of the years ithtkee-year period ended March 31, 1996 and theteelper share data and ratios for each of
the years in the four-year period ended March 361¢h) statement of financial condition of Capauthwest Venture Corporation as of
March 31, 1996, and the related statements of tipesaand cash flows for the year then ended amdttements of changes in shareholder's
equity for each of the years in the two-year pegaded March 31,1996. These financial statememtpanshare data and ratios are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyrarsibility is to express an opinion on these foahstatements and per share data and
ratios based on our audits. Capital Southwest Catjpm and subsidiary selected per share dataatius for the year ended March 31, 1992
was audited by other auditors whose report thedaded May 1, 1992 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe selected per share data and
ratios.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaitepted auditing standards. Those standardsedhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethemthedial statements and per share data and raédsearof material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. Our procedures included
verification of securities owned as of March 31 8%&d 1995, by examination of such securities hglthe custodian. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion (a) the consolidated financial stagats and selected per share data and ratiosa@fierabove present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Capital Soutsiw@orporation and subsidiary as of March 31, 1896 1995, and the results of their
operations, the changes in their net assets, ¢hsir flows for each of the years in the three-peaiod ended March 31, 1996 and the selected
per share data and ratios for each of the yeatwifour-year period ended March 31, 1996; andh®¥inancial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the ficiahposition of Capital Southwest Venture Corpamatas of March 31,1996, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year tretied and the changes in its shareholder's efguigach of the years in the two-year period
ended March 31,1996, in conformity with generalbgepted accounting principles.

KPMG PEAT MARWICK LLP

Dallas, Texas
April 19,1996



Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financtaddtion and Results of Operations
Results of Operations

The composite measure of the Company's financiédpeance in the Consolidated Statements of Operatis captioned "Increase in net
assets from operations before distributions" amsists of three elements. The first is " Net inmestt income”, which is the difference
between the Company's income from interest, divideand fees and its combined operating and intexgstnses, net of applicable income
taxes. The second element is "Net realized gass)lon investments", which is the difference betwibe proceeds received from disposition
of portfolio securities and their stated cost, afeipplicable income tax expense (or benefit). fima element is the "Net increase in
unrealized appreciation of investments before ilistions"”, which is the net change in the markeflaarvalue of the Company's investment
portfolio, compared with stated cost, net of anméase or decrease in deferred income taxes whickdvb@come payable if the unrealized
appreciation were realized through the sale orratfsposition of the investment portfolio. It shddde noted that the "Net realized gain (loss)
on investments" and "Net increase in unrealizedeapation of investments before distributions" directly related in that when an
appreciated portfolio security is sold to realizgain, a corresponding decrease in net unrealigprkaiation occurs by transferring the gain
associated with the transaction from being "unzeali to being "realized " Conversely, when a Iesalized on a depreciated portfolio
security, an increase in net unrealized appreciaazurs.

Net Investment Income

The Company's principal objective is to achievetehpppreciation. Therefore, a significant portafrthe investment portfolio is structurec
maximize the potential return from equity parti¢ipa and provides minimal current yield in the foahinterest or dividends. The Company
also earns interest income from the short-termstmment of cash funds, and the annual amount of islwcime varies based upon the average
level of funds invested during the year and fluttues in short-term interest rates. During the ¢hyears ended March 31, the Company had
interest income from temporary cash investmen®&68f7,000 in 1996, $667,000 in 1995 and $779,00®84. The Company also receives
management fees from its wholly-owned subsidiasieieh aggregated $523,200 in the year ended Mak¢t936 and $480,000 in the years
ended March 31,1995 and 1994. During the threesymaaled March 31, 1996, the Company recorded dididecome from the following
sources:

Ye ars Ended March 31

1996 1995 1994
Alamo Group INC........cccceenne $1,064,000 $984,200 $877,800
Cherokee Communications, Inc....... 144,000 180,000 144,000
Humac Company ..........ccccueeeee 208,200 - -
The RectorSeal Corporation ........ 1,529,019 1,285,112 1,533,490
Skylawn Corporation ............... 300,000 - -
Texas Shredder, Inc................ 178,125 - -
Other ....cccoevviviiiiciinene 173,660 180,072 354,099

$3,597,004 $2,629,384  $2,909,389

Total operating expenses, excluding interest ex@ensreased by $333,526 and $112,132 or 27.5% @r2% during the years ended March
31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. Due to the naifiits business, the majority of the Company's afileg expenses are related to employee
and director compensation, office expenses, lagélagcounting fees and the net pension beneférdat expense, the majority of which is
related to the SBA- guaranteed subordinated debesaf CSVC, increased by $305,737 and decreas&8®®43 during the years ended
March 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Net Realized Gain or Loss on Investments

Net realized gain on investments was $11,174,0&ér({@mcome tax expense of $5,357,215) during #erended March 31, 1996, compa
with a gain of $142,403 (after income tax experfsk76,679) during 1995 and a loss of $474,603 (afteome tax benefit of $196,418)
during 1994. Management does not attempt to mait@iomparable level of realized gains from yeaetar, but instead attempts to
maximize total investment portfolio appreciatiomi§ strategy often dictates the long-term holdifgartfolio securities in pursuit of
increased values and increased unrealized appogciaut may at opportune times dictate realiziamg through the disposition of certain
portfolio investments



Net Increase in Unrealized Appreciation of Investmets

For the three years ended March 31, the Compamyded an increase in unrealized appreciation astments before income taxes and
distributions of $54,619,668, $20,898,731 and $18,914 in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Adaémed in the first paragraph of this
discussion and analysis, the realization of gairiesses results in a corresponding decrease mrase in unrealized appreciation of
investments. Set forth in the following table dre significant increases and decreases in unrdadizpreciation (before the related change in
deferred income taxes and distributions and exotythe effect of gains or losses realized durirgytar) by portfolio company for securities
held at the end of each year.

Years Ended March 31

1996 1995 1994
Alamo Group Inc. ........c........ $ 3,652,000 $ 103,000 $ 7,766,500
American Homestar Corporation .... 3,834,276 921,434 -
Cherokee Communications, Inc...... 1,000,000 1,600,000
Data Race, InC.......cccccueeee. (1,905,300) 920,600 (5,805,000)
Dennis Tool Company .... ... (500,000) - 1,370,000
Encore Wire Corporation .......... (5,812,000) 358,250 3,094,250
LIL'Things, INC.........ccue.... (2,155,222) - -
Mail-Well, InC..........cccconee 1,246,990 - -
Mylan Laboratories, Inc........... (21,381) 1,218,717 (983,526)
Palm Harbor Homes, Inc............ 39,931,777 1 4,096,600 8,201,600
PETSMART, INC......ccvcvveannee 7,059,004 1,639,320 -
The RectorSeal Corporation ....... 3,000,000 5,300,000 3,500,000
Skylawn Corporation .............. 5,000,000 ( 7,000,000) -
Tecnol Medical Products, Inc...... (275,646) 1,017,758  (216,819)
Texas Shredder, Inc............... 1,175,000 749,998  (375,000)
The Whitmore Manufacturing
Company .......cccceeeveeeannnn. (1,200,000) (400,000)

A description of the investments listed above ath@éiomaterial components of the investment podfidiincluded elsewhere in this report
under the caption "Portfolio of Investments- Magdh 1996"

Deferred Taxes on Unrealized Appreciation of Inveshents

The Company provides for deferred Federal incomest@an net unrealized appreciation of investmeush taxes would become payable at
such time as unrealized appreciation is realizealigih the sale or other disposition of those coreptsof the investment portfolio which
would result in taxable transactions. At March 8396, consolidated deferred Federal income tax&6®{121,000 were provided on net
unrealized appreciation of investments of $198,386.compared with deferred taxes of $53,247,000atrunrealized appreciation of
$153,030,998 at March 31, 1995. Deferred incomegat March 31, 1996 and 1995 were provided ahiire currently effective maximum
Federal corporate tax rate on capital gains of 35%.

Portfolio Investments

During the year ended March 31, 1996, the Compawgsted $19,406,816 in various portfolio securiliged elsewhere in this report under
the caption "Portfolio Changes During the Year,'Iahhalso iists dispositions of portfolio securiti@®uring the 1995 and 1994 fiscal years,
Company invested a total of $9,556,876 and $109979 respectively.

Financial Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 31, 1996, the Company and CSVC had codatdd net cash equivalent assets (cash and casfalegts less the note payable to
bank) of $17.0 million, $10.0 million of which wagld by CSVC. Pursuant to Small Business Admirtistna("SBA") regulations, net cash
equivalent assets held by CSVC may not be trarsfesr advanced to the Company without first obtajrthe consent of the SBA.

The Company, on a separate basis, had $7.0 miflioet cash equivalent assets at March 31, 1996 Cldimpany also has an unsecured
$15,000,000 revolving line of credit, all of whigras available at March 31, 1996. Approximately 81@illion of the Company's separate
investment portfolio is represented by unrestrigtedlicly-traded securities, which have an ascertainableehagfue and represent a prim
source of liquidity.

Funds to be used by the Company for operatingwasiiient purposes may be transferred in the fordividends, management fees or loans
from Skylawn Corporation, The RectorSeal Corporatiad The Whitmore Manufacturing Company, whollyrew subsidiaries of the
Company, to the extent of their available cashrieseand borrowing capacities.

Under current SBA regulations and subject to SEMysroval of its credit application, CSVC would bgitted to borrow up to $34.5 million
in addition to the $11 million presently outstargliManagement believes that the net cash equivatesets available at year end and
additional borrowing capacity available through igsuance of SBA-guaranteed debentures will proaikrjuate funds for CSVC's venture
investment activities



Management believes that the Company's consolideedash equivalent assets are adequate to mesgpiected requirements. Consistent
with the long- term strategy of the Company and CSWe disposition of investments from time to timay also be an important source of
funds for future investment activities.

Impact of Inflation

The Company does not believe that its businessatsnally affected by inflation, other than the iagp which inflation may have on the
securities markets, the valuations of businesgiges and the relationship of such valuationsnwerlying earnings, all of which will
influence the value of the Company's investments.

Risks

Pursuant to Section 64(b)(1) of the Investment CamgpAct of 1940, a business development compamgdaired to describe the risk factors
involved in an investment in the securities of saompany due to the nature of the company's invastortfolio. Accordingly the Compau
states that:

The Company's objective is to achieve capital apatien through investments in businesses beli¢odthve favorable growth potential. S
businesses are often undercapitalized small corapavtiich lack management depth and have not y@hedtt profitability. The Company's
venture investments often include securities whiichnot yield interest or dividends and are suliieétgal or contractual restrictions on
resale, which restrictions adversely affect thaitiify and marketability of such securities.

Because of the speculative nature of the Compamyestments and the lack of any market for the seesi initially purchased by the
Company, there is a significantly greater riskasd than is the case with traditional investmeatisées. The high-risk, long-term nature of
the Company's venture investment activities maygmeshareholders of the Company from achievingepgippreciation and dividend
distributions.

Selected Consolidated Financial Data
(all figures in thousands except per share data)

1986 1987 1988 1989 1990

Financial Position (as of March 31)

Investments at cost $ 24,033 $21,241 $ 28,478 $ 29,665 $ 32,212
Unrealized appreciation 45,930 65,290 89,512 97,134 99,903
Investments at market or

fair value 69,963 86,531 117,990 126,799 132,115
Total assets 74,211 137,520 183,941 131,365 185,231
Subordinated debentures 10,000 16,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxes on

unrealized appreciation 12,581 21,837* 30,073 32,619 33,608
Net assets 51,048 66,367* 78,376 83,124 94,610
Shares outstanding** 3,955 3,776 3,563 3,563 3,617

Changes in Net Assets (years ended March 31)

Net investment income $ 87 % 45 $ 22% 716 $ 1,737
Net realized gain (loss) on
investments (190) 8,157 497 27 12,722

Net increase (decrease) in

unrealized appreciation

before distributions 7,764 10,105* 15,986 5,075 1,780
Increase in net assets

from operations before

distributions 7,661 18,307* 16,505 5,818 16,239
Cash dividends paid (316) (425) (378) (1,069) (5,197)
Securities dividends - - - - -
Treasury stock acquired - (2,563) (4,118) - -
Employee stock options

exercised - - - - 444
Increase in net assets 7,345 15,319* 12,009 4,749 11,486

Per Share Data (as of March 31)**

Deferred taxes on
unrealized appreciation $ 3.18 $ 5.78* $ 844 $ 915 $ 9.29
Net assets 1291 17.58* 22.00 23.33 26.16



% Increase 16.8% 36.2% 251% 6.0% 12.1%
Closing market price 9.875 17.50 16.75 18.25 21.375
Cash dividends paid 0.08 0.107 5 010 030 144
Securities dividends - - - - -

Selected Consolidated Financial Data
(all figures in thousands except per share data)

(continued)

1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996

Financial Position (as of March 31)

Investments at cost $ 31,593 $ 34,929 $ 33,953 $41,993 $49,730 $58,544
Unrealized appreciation 107,120 100,277 113,153 132,212 153,031 198,386
Investments at market or

fair value 138,713 135,206 147,106 174,205 202,761 256,930
Total assets 149,975 208,871 176,422 270,874 213,811 326,972
Subordinated debentures 15,000 11,000 15,000 15,000 11,000 11,000
Deferred taxes on

unrealized appreciation 36,063 33,761 38,112 45,932 53,247 69,121
Net assets 97,139 107,522 121,455 133,053 147,370 189,048
Shares outstanding** 3,617 3,644 3,681 3,715 3,735 3,767

Changes in Net Assets (years ended March 31)

Net investment income $ 2,090 $ 2,363 $ 2,189 $ 2,870 $ 2,447 $ 2,855
Net realized gain (loss) on
investments (2,515) 14,313 5,099 (475) 142 11,174

Net increase (decrease) in

unrealized appreciation

before distributions 4,762 (4,541) 8,524 11,160 13,584 38,746
Increase in net assets

from operations before

distributions 4,337 12,135 15,812 13,555 16,173 52,775
Cash dividends paid (1,809) (2,181) (2,202) (2,228) (2,241) (2,270)
Securities dividends - - - - - (9,402)
Treasury stock acquired - - - - - -

Employee stock options

exercised - 429 322 272 385 575
Increase in net assets 2,528 10,383 13,932 11,599 14,317 41,678
Per Share Data (as of March 31)**

Deferred taxes on

unrealized appreciation $ 997 $ 9.27 $10.35 $ 12.36 $ 14.26 $ 18.35
Net assets 26.86 29.51 3299 3581 39.46 50.18
% Increase 27%  9.9% 11.8% 85% 10.2% 27.2%
Closing market price 20.75 24.25 36.50 38.125 38.00 60.00
Cash dividends paid 0.50 0.60 0.60 060 0.60 0.60
Securities dividends - - - - - 2.50

* Restated on a pro forma basis to reflect a chamgeethod of accounting for deferred income taxes.

** Shares outstanding and per share amounts hase testated to give effect to a -for-one stock split in September 19i



Shareholder Information
Stock Transfer Agent

KeyCorp Shareholder Services, Inc., 1201 Elm Sti®eaite 5050, Dallas, TX 75270-2014 (Telephone Y&2XY -7844) serves as transfer ag
for the Company's common stock. Certificates teréesferred should be mailed directly to the transfent, preferably by registered mail.

Shareholders

The Company had approximately 880 record holdeits @ommon stock at March 31, 1996. This totaldoet include an estimated 1,400
shareholders with shares held under beneficial cstaiy@in nominee name or within clearinghouse pmsét of brokerage firms or banks.

Market Prices

The common stock of Capital Southwest Corporatsainaded in the over-the-counter market through\igonal Association of Securities
Dealers Automated Quotation ("Nasdaq") National kéaSystem under the symbol CSWC. The followinghtagd low selling prices for the
shares during each quarter of the last two fisealy were taken from quotations provided to the oy by the National Association of
Securities Dealers, Inc.

Quarter Ended High  Low
June 30, 1994 ........... $40 $37 3/4
September 30, 1994....... 40 3/4 39
December 31, 1994 ....... 3912 34
March 31, 1995 .......... 383/4 36
Quarter Ended High  Low
June 30, 1995 ........... $45 $37 3/4
September 30, 1995....... 453/4 411/2
December 31, 1995 ....... 511/2 441/4
March 31, 1996 .......... 60 50 1/2

Dividends

The payment dates and amounts of cash dividendshpee since April 1, 1994, are as follows:

Payment Date Cash Dividend
May 31, 1994 ........... $0.20
November 30, 1994 ...... 0.40
May 31, 1995 ........... 0.20
Novembe 30, 1995 ....... 0.40
May 31, 1996 ........... 0.20

The amounts and timing of cash dividend paymenis lggnerally been dictated by requirements of tberhal Revenue Code regarding the
distribution of taxable net investment income @uated investment companies.

A dividend of one share of Palm Harbor Homes, émenmon stock for each five shares of Capital Soafiwommon stock was paid on July
31, 1995. Cash payments were made in lieu of Panbdi stock to record holders of fewer than 50ehaif Capital Southwest and in lieu of
fractional shares.

Automatic Dividend Reinvestment and Optional Cash ©ntribution Plan

As a service to its shareholders, the Company ©HarAutomatic Dividend Reinvestment and OptioredtCContribution Plan for
shareholders of record who own a minimum of 25eharhe Company pays all costs of administratioth@fPlan except brokerage
transaction fees. Upon request, shareholders maynabformation on the Plan from the Company, 1280eston Road, Suite 700, Dallas,
Texas 75230. Telephone (214) 233-8242.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Capital Saeist Corporation will be held on Monday, July 1®69at 10:00 a.m. in the North
Dallas Bank Tower Meeting Room (first floor), 129Bfeston Road, Dallas, Texi



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

The Board of Directors
Capital Southwest Corporation:

We consent to incorporation by reference in théstegfion statement (No. 33-43881) on Form S-8 apital Southwest Corporation of our
report dated April 19, 1996, relating to the cordatked statements of financial condition of Cap8althwest Corporation and subsidiary &
March 31, 1996 and 1995, the portfolio of investtseas of March 31, 1996, and the related cons@itiatatements of operations, changes in
net assets and cash flows for each of the yedreithreeyear period ended March 31, 1996 and the seleeedhare data and ratios for ei

of the years in the four-year period ended Marchl396, which report appears in the annual reposhtareholders for the year ended March
31, 1996 and is incorporated by reference in threiahreport on Form 10-K of Capital Southwest Coagion.

KPMG Peat Marwick L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
June 21, 199



ARTICLE 6

This schedule contains summary financial infornragatracted from the Consolidated Statement ofriiiz Condition at March 31, 1996
and the Consolidated Statement of Operations ®y#ar ended March 31, 1996 and is qualified ieritirety by refernece to such financial

statements.

PERIOD TYPE 12 MO¢S
FISCAL YEAR END MAR 31 199¢
PERIOD START APR 01 199
PERIOD END MAR 31 199¢
INVESTMENTS AT COST 58,544,10
INVESTMENTS AT VALUE 256,930,46
RECEIVABLES 285,00:
ASSETS OTHEF 2,711,80:
OTHER ITEMS ASSET¢ 67,045,18
TOTAL ASSETS 326,972,45
PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES 0
SENIOR LONG TERM DEBT 11,000,00
OTHER ITEMS LIABILITIES 126,924,69
TOTAL LIABILITIES 137,924,69
SENIOR EQUITY 0
PAID IN CAPITAL COMMON 9,017,53
SHARES COMMON STOCF 3,767,05.
SHARES COMMON PRIOF 3,735,05
ACCUMULATED NIl CURRENT 4,490,37
OVERDISTRIBUTION NII 0
ACCUMULATED NET GAINS 53,307,78
OVERDISTRIBUTION GAINS 0
ACCUM APPREC OR DEPRE! 129,265,36
NET ASSETS 189,047,75
DIVIDEND INCOME 3,597,00:
INTEREST INCOME 2,018,30!
OTHER INCOME 561,95(
EXPENSES NET 3,246,89
NET INVESTMENT INCOME 2,854,91
REALIZED GAINS CURRENT 11,174,02
APPREC INCREASE CURREN 38,745,66
NET CHANGE FROM OP¥ 52,774,61
EQUALIZATION 0
DISTRIBUTIONS OF INCOME 2,253,83.
DISTRIBUTIONS OF GAINS 153,37t
DISTRIBUTIONS OTHER 9,264,30:
NUMBER OF SHARES SOLI 32,00(
NUMBER OF SHARES REDEEMEI 0
SHARES REINVESTEL 0
NET CHANGE IN ASSETS 41,667,84
ACCUMULATED NIl PRIOR 3,889,28i
ACCUMULATED GAINS PRIOR 42,287,13
OVERDISTRIB NIl PRIOR 0
OVERDIST NET GAINS PRIOF 0
GROSS ADVISORY FEE! 0
INTEREST EXPENSE 1,700,00:
GROSS EXPENSI 3,246,89
AVERAGE NET ASSETS 0
PER SHARE NAV BEGIN 39.4¢
PER SHARE NII 7€
PER SHARE GAIN APPRE( 13.2¢
PER SHARE DIVIDEND (0.60
PER SHARE DISTRIBUTION¢ (0.04;
RETURNS OF CAPITAL (2.46
PER SHARE NAV ENC 50.1¢
EXPENSE RATIC 0
AVG DEBT OUTSTANDING 0
AVG DEBT PER SHARE 0

End of Filing
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